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NOTICE OF THE 14™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that Fourteenth Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) of the Members of
Capri Global Housing Finance Limited (‘the Company’) will be held on Thursday, June 18, 2020 at 4.00
P.M., at the Registered Office of the Company at 502, Tower A, Peninsula Business Park, Senapati Bapat
Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai-400 013. Maharashtra (India) to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider, approve and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2020 together with the Report of the Directors’ and Auditors’ thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rajesh Sharma (DIN: 00020037), who retires by rotation, and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
3. Re-appointment of Mr. Tilak Raj Bajalia (DIN : 02291892) as an Independent Director of the Company.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150 and 152 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules,
2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) read
with Schedule IV of the Act, Mr. Tilak Raj Bajalia (DIN 02291892), Independent Director of the
Company, whose period of office expired on March 31, 2020 on completion of the first Five (5)
consecutive years of appointment within the meaning of Section 149(10) of the Act and who has been
appointed as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from April 1, 2020 by the Board of
Directors of the Company and who holds office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting and who
has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6)
of the Act, as amended from time to time and who is eligible for re-appointment for a second term
and in respect of whom a notice in writing pursuant to section 160 of the Act has been received in the
prescribed manner and considering the report of his performance evaluation for the year 2019-20, be
and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to hold office for a second
term of Five (5) consecutive years commencing from April 1, 2020 upto March 31, 2025 and whose
office shall not be liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director and/or the Company Secretary of the Company be and is
hereby authorised to do all acts, deeds and things including filings with the appropriate authorities and
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take steps as may be deemed necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this Resolution and
matters incidental thereto.”

Re-appointment of Ms. Bhagyam Ramani (DIN 00107097) as an Independent Director of the Company

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution, as a
Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150 and 152 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules,
2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) read
with Schedule IV of the Act, Ms. Bhagyam Ramani (DIN 00107097), Independent Director of the
Company, whose period of office expired on March 31, 2020 on completion of the first Five (5)
consecutive years of appointment within the meaning of Section 149(10) of the Act and who has been
appointed as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from April 1, 2020 by the Board of
Directors of the Company and who holds office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting and who
has submitted a declaration that she meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6)
of the Act, as amended from time to time and who is eligible for re-appointment for a second term
and in respect of whom a notice in writing pursuant to section 160 of the Act has been received in the
prescribed manner and considering the report of her performance evaluation for the year 2019-20, be
and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to hold office for a second
term of Five (5) consecutive years commencing from April 1, 2020 upto March 31, 2025 and whose
office shall not be liable to retire by rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director and/or the Company Secretary of the Company be and is
hereby authorised to do all acts, deeds and things including filings with the appropriate authorities and
take steps as may be deemed necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this Resolution and
matters incidental thereto.”

Conversion of Loan into Equity

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 62(3) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force)
and the applicable Rules made there under (“Act”), and the enabling provisions of the Memorandum
of Association and Articles of Association of the Company, Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999,
('FEMA') as amended and rules and regulations framed there under as in force and in accordance with
other applicable policies, rules, regulation, circulars, notifications, clarifications and guidelines thereon
issued from time to time by the Government of India, The National Housing Bank (NHB), the Reserve
Bank of India ('RBI') and the Registrar of Companies ('ROC') and subject to requisite approvals,
consents, permissions, and/or sanctions, from NHB, RBI and any other appropriate authorities to the
extent applicable and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be prescribed, stipulated or
imposed by any of them while granting any such approvals, consents, permission, and / or sanctions,
which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the
'Board', which term shall be deemed to include any Committee which the Board may have constituted
or may hereinafter constitute to exercise its powers including the powers conferred hereunder), and
subject to any other alterations, modifications, conditions, corrections, changes and variations that
may be decided by the Board in its absolute discretion, the consent of the Company be and is hereby
accorded to the Board, in respect of financial assistance availed and/or to be availed and/or continued
to be availed from various banks and financial institutions (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“Lenders”) on the terms and conditions contained in the financing documents, such terms and
conditions to provide, inter alia, to convert the whole or part of the outstanding loans of the Company



(whether disbursed on or prior to or after the date of this resolution and whether then due or payable
or not), with various Lenders, at the option of the Lenders, the loans or any other financial assistance
categorized as loans (hereinafter referred to as the “Financial Assistance”), in Foreign Currency or
Indian Rupees, which have already been availed or as may be availed from the Lenders, from time to
time, not exceeding % 2,000 Crore (Rupees Two Thousand Crore) and consistent with the borrowing
powers of the Company under Section 180(1)(c) of the Act , into fully paid- up equity shares of the
Company on such terms and conditions as may be stipulated in the financing documents and subject
to the provisions of the applicable laws and in the manner specified in a notice in writing to be given
by the Lenders (or their agents or trustees) to the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Notice of
Conversion”) and specifically in accordance with the conditions given below:

(i)  the conversion right reserved as aforesaid may be exercised by the Lenders on one or more occasions
during the currency of the Financial Assistance;

(i) on receipt of the Notice of Conversion, the Company shall, subject to the provisions of the financing
documents, allot and issue the requisite number of fully paid-up equity shares to the Lenders or any
other person identified by the Lenders as from the date of conversion and the Lenders may accept
the same in complete satisfaction of the part of the loans so converted;

(iii) the part of the loan so converted shall cease to carry interest as from the date of conversion and the
loan shall stand correspondingly reduced, upon such conversion, the repayment instalments of the
loan payable after the date of conversion as per the financing documents shall stand reduced
proportionately by the amounts of the loan so converted. The equity shares so allotted and issued to
the Lenders or such other person identified by the Lenders shall carry, from the date of conversion,
the right to receive proportionately the dividends and other distributions declared or to be declared
in respect of the equity capital of the Company;

(iv) in the event that the Lenders exercise the conversion right as aforesaid, the Company shall at its cost
get the equity shares issued to the Lenders or such other person identified by the Lenders as a result
of the conversion ;

(v) the loans shall be converted into equity shares at a price to be determined in accordance with the
NHB, RBI, FEMA and / or any other regulations/ guidelines, at the time of such conversion.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the equity shares to be allotted and issued to such Lenders pursuant to its
exercising the right of conversion shall rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing equity shares in
the Company;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to finalise the terms and conditions to
convert the Financial Assistance into equity shares of the Company anytime during the currency of the
Financial Assistances, on the terms specified in the financing documents, including upon happening of an
event of default by the Company in terms of the loan arrangements with the Lenders.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT on receipt of the Notice of Conversion, the Board be and is hereby authorized
to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary and shall allot and issue requisite number of fully
paid-up equity shares in the Company to such Lenders or such other person identified by the Lenders.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to accept such modifications and to
accept such terms and conditions as may be imposed or required by the Lenders arising from or incidental
to the aforesaid terms providing for such option and to do all such acts and things as may be necessary to
give effect to this resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolutions, the Board, be and is hereby
authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may in its absolute discretion deem



necessary, proper or desirable as may be required to create, offer, issue and allot the aforesaid shares, to
dematerialize the shares of the Company and to resolve and settle any question, difficulty or doubt that
may arise in this regard and to do all such other acts, deeds, matters and things in connection or incidental
thereto as the Board in its absolute discretion may deem fit, without being required to seek any further
consent or approval of the members or otherwise to the end and intent that they shall be deemed to have
given their approval thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any of the powers
herein conferred to any Committee of the Board or any Director(s) or Officer(s) of the Company and to
generally do all such acts, deeds and things as may be required in connection with the aforesaid
resolutions, including making necessary filings with the regulatory authorities and execution of any
documents on, behalf of the Company and to represent the Company before any governmental authorities
and to appoint any Merchant Bankers or other Professional Advisors, Consultants and Legal Advisors to
give effect to the aforesaid resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board and its Committee in connection with any
matter(s) referred to or contemplated in any of the foregoing resolutions be and are approved, ratified
and confirmed in all respects.”

By Order of the Board
For Capri Global Housing Finance Limited

Sd/-
Abhishekh Kanoi
Company Secretary
Place: Mumbai
Dated: May 9, 2020

REGISTERED OFFICE

502, Tower A, Peninsula Business Park,
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel,
Mumbai 400 013



NOTE:

1. AMEMBERENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ALSO ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY
TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE
COMPANY. THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING PROXY IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE, SHOULD BE LODGED
AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE
TIME OF THE MEETING.

2. An Explanatory Statement, pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), in
respect of the special business as set out in the Notice is annexed hereto.

3. The Statutory Registers and other document required to be kept open for inspection under the Act
read with rules made thereunder at the AGM, will be available for inspection by the members at the
AGM of the Company.

4. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall be open
for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during the business hours up to and including
the date and time of the AGM of the Company.

5. Members / Proxies should fill in the attendance slip for attending the Meeting. Proxies form as
prescribed under the Act is enclosed herewith.

6. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representative to attend the meeting are
requested to send a duly certified copy of the board resolution authorizing their representative to
attend and vote at the AGM.

7. The Members may note that the Notice of the AGM of the Company along with the Annual Report will
be available on the Company’s website at www.capriglobalhomes.com.

8. The landmark of the venue of the meetings and the Route map is enclosed with the Notice and same
has also been posted on the website of the Company.



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
(PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013)

As required by Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), the following explanatory statement
sets out all material facts relating to the business mentioned under Item No. 3, Iltem No.4 and Item No. 5
of the accompanying Notice dated May 9, 2020:

ITEM NO. 3

Mr. Tilak Raj Bajalia (DIN: 02291892) was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company pursuant
to the Section 149 of the Act read with Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules,
2014, by the Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on July 18, 2015 to hold
office upto March 31, 2020 ("first term" as per the explanation to Section 149(10) and 149(11) of the Act).

The extent provisions of the Act provides for maximum of two terms for all Independent Directors. An
Independent Director is eligible for re-appointment for the second term of five consecutive years, on
passing of a Special Resolution by the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board Report.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee at its Meeting held on February 17, 2020 after taking into
account the performance of Mr. Tilak Raj Bajalia during his first term of five years, the report of his
performance evaluation for the year 2018-19 and considering the knowledge, acumen, expertise and
experience in his field and the substantial contribution made by Mr. Tilak Raj Bajalia during his first term as
an Independent Director, has recommended to the Board that continued association of Mr. Tilak Raj
Bajalia as an Independent Director would be in the interest of the Company.

Based on the above, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors has
recommended the re-appointment of Mr. Tilak Raj Bajalia as an Independent Director on the Board of the
Company, to hold office for the second term of five consecutive years commencing from April 1, 2020 upto
March 31, 2025 and not liable to retire by rotation. In the interim, Mr. Tilak Raj Bajalia was appointed as an
Additional Director (Independent) with effect from April 1, 2020 till the conclusion of the ensuing AGM
where the shareholders are requested to consider and approve his re-appointment.

Brief profile of Mr. Tilak Raj Bajalia covering the details of his qualification, experience etc. as required in
terms of Secretarial Standards on General Meeting, are mentioned herein below:

Mr. Tilak Raj Bajalia retired as Deputy Managing Director of the SIDBI, before joining Board of the Company
as Independent Director. Before being appointed as a Managing Director of SIDBI in October 2012, he was
the Executive Director with IDBI Bank Limited.

During his 39-year stint in banking industry, he has handled various portfolio including Corporate Banking,
Project Appraisal, NPA management and resolution, MSME Funding, Human Resource
Management/Development, Training, Legal, Management of facilities and infrastructure.

He played a significant role in the formation of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME) vertical in
IDBI in 2008. He had been an IDBI nominee on the SIDBI Board since 2009, before being appointed its
Deputy Managing Director.

He served as a Member of the Committee constituted by Reserve Bank of India for restructuring of SME
and other concerns. He was member of committees relating to MSME sector constituted by chambers of
commerce including Maharashtra Chamber of Commerce, FICCI and Cll. Mr. Tilak Raj Bajalia has
completed BA (Economics), CAIIB, ICWAL.



Mr. Tilak Raj Bajalia has been associated with the Company since September 2014. He is a member of
Audit Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Tilak Raj Bajalia has complied with the “Fit & Proper” criteria to continue on the Board of the
Company, as prescribed by Regulation 4 of the Housing Finance Companies — Corporate Governance (NHB)
Directions, 2016 and has given a declaration to the Board that he meets the criteria of independence as
provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

In terms of proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 152, the Board of Directors is of the opinion that Mr. Tilak
Raj Bajalia fulfils the conditions specified in the Act for his re-appointment as an Independent Director and
is Independent of the Management.

The Company has also received the following from Mr. Tilak Raj Bajalia:

a. Consentin writing to act as a Director;
b. Intimation that he is not disqualified under Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013;
c. Adeclaration to the effect that he is not debarred from holding the office of a Director.

A copy of draft letter for appointment of Mr. Tilak Raj Bajalia as an Independent Director setting out the
terms and conditions would be available for inspection without any fee by the members at the Registered
Office of the Company during normal business hours on any working day and the same has also been put
up on the Company website: www.caprihomeloans.com.

The Company has also received notice in writing from a member under Section 160 of the Act proposing
the candidature of Mr. Tilak Raj Bajalia for the office of Independent Director of the Company

The other details of the Director whose re-appointment is proposed at Item 0.3 of the accompanying
Notice, have been given in the attached annexure.

The Board recommends the Resolution for re-appointment of Mr. Tilak Raj Bajalia at Item No. 3 of this
Notice as Special Resolution, for your approval.

Except Mr. Tilak Raj Bajalia being the appointee, none of the other Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
of the Company and their relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolutions
set out at Item No. 3, except to the extent of their shareholding, if any, in the Company.

ITEM NO. 4

Ms. Bhagyam Ramani (DIN: 00107097) was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company
pursuant to the Section 149 of the Act read with Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014, by the Shareholders at the AGM of the Company held on July 18, 2015 to hold office upto
March 31, 2020 ("first term" as per the explanation to Section 149(10) and 149(11) of the Act).

The extent provisions of the Act provides for maximum of two terms for all Independent Directors. An
Independent Director is eligible for re-appointment for the second term of five consecutive years, on
passing of a Special Resolution by the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board Report.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee at its Meeting held on February 17, 2020, after taking into
account the performance of Ms. Bhagyam Ramani during her first term of five years, the report of her
performance evaluation for the year 2018-19 and considering the knowledge, acumen, expertise and
experience in her respective field and the substantial contribution made by Ms. Bhagyam Ramani during
her tenure as an Independent Director since her appointment, has recommended to the Board that
continued association of Ms. Ramani as an Independent Director would be in the interest of the Company.
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Based on the above, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors has
recommended the re-appointment of Ms. Bhagyam Ramani as an Independent Director on the Board of
the Company, to hold office for the second term of five consecutive years commencing from April 1, 2020
upto March 31, 2025 and not liable to retire by rotation. In the interim, Ms. Ramani was appointed as an
Additional Director (Independent) with effect from April 1, 2020 till the conclusion of the ensuing AGM
where the shareholders are requested to consider and approve her re-appointment.

Brief profile of Ms. Bhagyam Ramani covering the details of her qualification, experience etc. as required in
terms of Secretarial Standards on General Meeting, are mentioned herein below:

Ms. Bhagyam Ramani is a master’s in economics from University of Mumbai with specialization in
Industrial and Monetary Economics. She was a Director of General Insurance Corporation of India from
2009 till her retirement in 2012.

Ms. Ramani is currently serving as Independent Director on the Boards of prominent companies including
Saurashtra Cement Ltd., Gujarat Sidhee Cement Ltd., Lloyds Metals and Energy Ltd., Tata AIG General
Insurance Company Limited, IDBI Federal, Life Insurance Company Ltd., L&T Special Steels and Heavy
Forgings Private Ltd. and NSE Clearing Limited.

She has more than 40 years of experience in the field of treasury operations and portfolio management
which is very vital for the Company’s business operations.

Ms. Ramani has been associated with the Company since September 2014. She is a Chairperson of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and member of the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

Ms. Ramani has complied with the “Fit & Proper” criteria to continue on the Board of the Company, as
prescribed by Regulation 4 of the Housing Finance Companies — Corporate Governance (NHB) Directions,
2016 and has given a declaration to the Board that she meets the criteria of independence as provided in
Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

In terms of proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 152, the Board of Directors is of the opinion that Ms.
Bhagyam Ramani fulfils the conditions specified in the Act for her re-appointment as an Independent
Director and is Independent of the Management.

The Company has also received the following from Ms. Ramani:

a. Consentin writing to act as a Director;
b. Intimation that she is not disqualified under Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013;
c. Adeclaration to the effect that she is not debarred from holding the office of a Director.

A copy of draft letter for appointment of Ms. Bhagyam Ramani as an Independent Director setting out the
terms and conditions would be available for inspection without any fee by the members at the Registered
Office of the Company during normal business hours on any working day and the same has also been put
up on the Company website: www.caprihomeloans.com.

The Company has also received notice in writing from a member under Section 160 of the Act proposing
the candidature of Mr. Tilak Raj Bajalia for the office of Independent Director of the Company

The other details of the Director whose re-appointment is proposed at Item no.4 of the accompanying
Notice, have been given in the attached annexure.

The Board recommends the Resolution for re-appointment of Ms. Bhagyam Ramani at Item no. 4 of this
Notice as Special Resolution, for your approval.
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Except Ms. Bhagyam Ramani being the appointee, none of the other Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company and their relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the
resolutions set out at item no. 4, except to the extent of their shareholding, if any, in the Company.

ITEM NO.5

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(c) of the Act, the shareholders of the Company at the 13t
Annual General Meeting held on June 24, 2019, in supersession of their earlier resolution, enhanced the
borrowing limit of the Company from erstwhile ¥ 1,000 Crores (Rupees One Thousand Crores) to ¥ 2,000
Crore (Rupees Two Thousand Crore) through a Special Resolution and authorized therein to the Board of
Directors of the Company to borrow money/ moneys exceeding the aggregate of the paid-up capital and
the free reserves of the Company upto an amount of % 2,000 Crore (Rupees Two Thousand Crore) from
various banks and financial institutions (“Lenders”).

Accordingly, pursuant to the provisions of Section 62(3) of the Act and Rules made there-under, the
Company is required to pass an enabling Special Resolution, to enable the Lenders to convert the
outstanding Financial Assistance, in foreign currency or Indian Rupee, already availed from the Lenders or
as may be availed from the Lenders, from time to time, at their option, into equity shares of the Company
upon such terms and conditions as may be deemed appropriate by the Board and at a price to be
determined in accordance with the applicable provisions of Securities Exchange Board of India (Issue of
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009, Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999,
National Housing Bank of India and /or Reserve Bank of India and all other applicable regulations /
guidelines, at the time of such conversion.

Pursuant to provisions of Section 62(3) of the Act, this resolution requires approval of the members by way
of passing of a Special Resolution.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the resolution as set out in Item No. 5, to enable the Lenders, in
terms of the lending arrangements, entered / to be entered, and as may be specified by Lenders under the
financing documents already executed or to be executed in respect of the Financial Assistance availed
and/or to be availed and/or continued to be availed, at their option, to convert the whole or part of their
respective outstanding Financial Assistance into equity shares of the Company, upon such terms and
conditions as may be deemed appropriate by the Board.

Since time is of essence for making the decisions regarding raising the financial assistance or agreeing to
terms and conditions for raising the financial assistance (including option to convert loan into equity),
especially keeping in view the interest of the Company, it may not be feasible for the Company to seek
shareholders consent each and every time, in view of the timings and the expenses involved, hence,
proposes this resolution for approval.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are in anyway,
concerned or interested, either directly or indirectly and financially or otherwise, in the Special Resolution,
save and except to the extent of their respective interest as shareholders of the Company.



DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT / RE-APPOINTMENT AS REQUIRED UNDER SECRETARIAL
STANDARD- 2 ON GENERAL MEETING

Mr. Rajesh Sharma

Mr. Sharma is a qualified Chartered Accountant from the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. He is
the Managing Director, with over 25 years of experience in Capital Market and Financial Advisory Services.
A forward thinker, a first generation entrepreneur and a thought leader, Mr. Sharma has diverse
experience in the domain of corporate finance, investment banking, merchant banking and asset financing
domains. He has expertise in innovating financial products, designing investment strategies for clients and
financial risk management.

He is an astute businessman and his deep insights in the debt markets are reflected in his ability to
strategize the entire stakeholder value creation. Building a business on the principles of ethics, economic
empowerment and equitable growth, he envisions the Company to rise as one of India’s premier financial
institutions.

He is not related to any of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. The Board of
Directors recommend passing of the resolution set out in item No. 2 of the accompanying Notice.

Except Mr. Rajesh Sharma, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their
relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in Iltem No.2.

Mr. Tilak Raj Bajalia

For details pertaining to qualification, experience of Mr. Tilak Raj Bajalia, please refer to the Explanatory
Statement in respect of the Special Business set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice of the AGM pursuant to
Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Ms. Bhagyam Ramani

For details pertaining to qualification, experience of Ms. Bhagyam Ramani, please refer to the Explanatory
Statement in respect of the Special Business set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice of the AGM pursuant to

Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Other Details:

Name of the Mr. Rajesh Sharma Mr. Tilak Raj Bajalia Ms. Bhagyam Ramani

Code of Conduct:
Abide by the Code of
Conduct devised by
the Company

April 1, 2020 to March 31,
2025.

Retire by rotation:
Not-Liable to retire by
rotation

Director

Date of Birth February 28, 1970 December 25, 1953 January 09, 1952
Age 50 66 67
Nationality Indian Indian Indian

Date of April 17, 2006 September 25, 2014 September 25, 2014
appointment on

the board

Terms and | Retire by rotation: Appointment : Appointment :
conditions of Liable to retire by Second term for Five (5) Second term for Five (5)
Re-appointment rotation years w.e.f. years w.e.f.

April 1, 2020 to March
31, 2025.

Retire by rotation:
Not-Liable to retire by
rotation




Duties: Duties:
As provided under Section | As  provided  under
166 of the Act in addition | Section 166 of the Act in
to duties mandated under | addition to duties
Schedule IV of the Act. mandated under
Schedule IV of the Act.
Number of shares 100 Nil Nil
held in the
company
Relationship with None None None
other Directors,
Manager and
other KMP
Number of 4/6 6/6 5/6
Meetings of the
Board attended /
held
Directorships held | 1. Capri Global Capital | 1.India Steel Works | 1. Gujarat Sidhee
in other Limited Limited Cement Limited
companies 2. Capri Global Advisory | 2.Isinox Limited 2. Saurashtra Cement
(excluding foreign Services Private | 3.Indinox Steels Private Limited
companies and Limited Limited 3. Lloyds Metals and
Government 3. Parshwanath 4. Moneyplus Financial Energy Limited
Bodies) Buildcon Private Services Private Limited | 4. L&T Special Steels and
Limited 5. Kanchansobha Finance Heavy Forgings
4. Gagandeep Private Limited Private Limited
Infrastructures 6. Pen India Limited 5. Capri Global Capital
Private Limited Limited
5. Sukumar  Properties 6. IDBI Federal Life
Private Limited Insurance  Company
6. Dnyaneshwar Trading Limited

and Investment
Private Limited
7. Capri Global Asset

Reconstruction Pivate
Limited

8. Capri Global Holdings
Private Limited

9. Parijat Properties
Private Limited

10.Shri  Rangji Realties
Private Limited

11.Stroll Properties
Private Limited

12.Sweet Memories
Property Private
Limited

13.Sitilite Properties

Private Limited
14.Vishwamukha
Developers
Limited
15.Sarvasiddhanta
Properties

Private

Private

7. NSE Clearing Limited

8. Tata AIG General
Insurance  Company
Limited




Limited

16.Budhinath  Advisory
Services Private
Limited
17.Realty Check
Properties Private
Limited
18.Terrain Properties
Private Limited
19.Money Matters
Properties Private
Limited
Membership / | Audit Committee Audit Committee Audit Committee
Chairmanship  of | Nil 1. India Steel Works | 1. Capri Global Capital
Committees of Limited- Member Limited- Member
other companies Stakeholders' 2.Pen India  Limited- | 2.L & T Special Steels
Relationship Committee Member and Heavy Forgings

Capri  Global Capital
Limited — Member

Corporate Social
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,
Capri Global Housing Finance Limited

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their Fourteenth Annual Report together with the
Annual Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2020.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The summary of the Company’s Financial Performance for the Financial year ended March 31, 2020 as
compared to the previous Financial year ended March 31, 2019 is given below:

(X in Lakh)
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Total Revenue 13,946.96 8,889.58
Less: Operating Expenses 3,465.39 3,819.09
Less: Impairment on financial instruments (Expected Credit Loss) 451.06 245.88
Profit before Interest, Depreciation & Taxes (PBIDT) 10,030.51 4,824.61
Less: Depreciation 231.15 176.38
Less: Interest & Finance Charges 6,682.95 3,721.14
Profit Before Tax 3,116.41 927.09
Less: Provisions for taxation 683.15 228.84
Profit After Tax (PAT) 2,433.26 698.24
Profit After Tax (PAT) including Other Comprehensive Income 2,432.28 695.62
Statutory Reserve (Under Section 29C of the National Housing Bank 490.00 140.00
Act, 1987)
Earnings per Share (EPS) (Rs.) 4.01 1.88
Net Worth 23,153.19 20,720.91
Borrowings from Bank/ Financial Institutions 77,431.19 67,637.42
Loan Book / Assets Under Management (AUM) 89,825 79,265

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE/STATE OF AFFAIRS

A.

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

Your Company’s focus continued to provide loan to first time home buyers belonging to middle and
lower income earning families. This was the Company’s third full year of operations and the Company
achieved a loan book of 89,825 Lakh for the year ended March 31, 2020 as compared to 279,265 Lakh
representing an increase of 13.30%.The Company expanded its reach to 78 branches spread over 6
states i.e. Maharashtra, Gujarat, Madhya Pradesh, Delhi NCR, Rajasthan and Uttar Pradesh during the
year as compared to 75 Branches spread over 6 states of the previous year.

The Company’s total revenue from operations for the year ended March 31, 2020 was ¥13,946.96 Lakh
as compared to revenue from operations of ¥8,889.58 Lakh in the previous year, an increase of 57% and
reported a Profit After Tax of 22,433.26 Lakh for the year ended March 31, 2020 as compared to profit
of ¥698.24 Lakh of the previous year, an increase of 248%.

The Gross NPA of the Company stood at 1.21% and the Net NPA was at 0.39% as of March 31, 2020,
which is well below the industry averages.

STATE OF AFFAIRS

Home Loan segment has shown an impressive growth of 13.30% at 89,825 Lakh during the Financial
Year 2019-20 as against 379,265 Lakh in the Financial Year 2018-19 and increasing its reach to 10,207



customers from 8,637 customers in previous year. During the year, the Company has disbursed home
loans amounting to 225,300 Lakh as compared to ¥57,300 Lakh in the previous year.

The Company Net worth has increased from %20,720.91 Lakh to %23,153.91 Lakh in FY 2019-20 on
account of 248% jump in PAT to %2,433.26 Lakh during the current financial year.

Covid-19 Pandemic Impact

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic across the globe and in India has contributed to a significant
decline and volatility in the global and Indian financial markets and slowdown in the economic activities.
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has issued guidelines relating to COVID-19 Regulatory Package dated March
27, 2020 and April 17, 2020 and in accordance therewith, the Company has proposed a moratorium of
three months on the payment of all principal instalments and/ or interest, as applicable, falling due
between March 1, 2020 and May 31, 2020 to all eligible borrowers classified as standard, even if
overdue as on February 29, 2020, excluding the collections already made in the month of March 2020.
For all such accounts where the moratorium is granted, the asset classification will remain at a standstill
during the moratorium period (i.e. the number of days past due shall exclude the moratorium period
for the purposes of asset classification as per the Company’s policy).

Further, the Company has, based on current available information and based on the policy approved by
the board, determined the provision for impairment of financial assets. Given the uncertainty over the
potential macro-economic impact, the Company’s management has considered internal and external
information including credit reports and economic forecasts upto the date of approval of these financial
Statement. Accordingly, the Company has made provision for expected credit loss on financial assets as
at March 31, 2020. As part of the management overlays, as per the approved ECL policy, the
management has increased the underlying PD and LGD as computed by ECL Model by 15-25% and 15-
25% respectively depending on the nature of the portfolio/borrower, the management's estimate of
the future stress and risk and available market information. Based on the current indicators of future
economic conditions, the Company considers this provision to be adequate and expects to recover the
carrying amount of these financial assets.

The extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic will impact the Company’s Financial Statement will
depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain, including, among other things, any new
information concerning the severity of the COVID-19 pandemic and any action to contain its spread or
mitigate its impact whether government-mandated or elected by the Company. Given the uncertainty
over the potential macro-economic condition, the impact of the global health pandemic may be
different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial Statement and the Company
will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

RESOURCE MOBILIZATION

The Company has strengthened its relationships with banks /financial institution and got sanctions of
% 39,000 Lakh. As of March 31, 2020, borrowings from Public sector, private sector banks and financial
institutions in term loans (tenure of 7-8 years)/ CC limits were ¥77,431.19 Lakh as against ¥67,637.42
Lakh in the Financial Year 2018-19. The Company has raised fresh resources from term loans and other
facilities from banks of 227,500 Lakh and refinance from National Housing Bank of 211,500 Lakh. The
un-availed limits from banks and FI’s as at March 31, 2020 is 320,000 Lakh. During the year under
review, your Company has banking relationships with 11 banks. The Company has cash and bank
balance of % 1962.80 Lakh and liquid mutual fund investment of ¥11,208.99 Lakh as at March 31, 2020.

The Debt Equity ratio of the Company as at March 31, 2020 was 3.34 times. The Company has been
regular in repayment of its debt obligations to the banks and financial institutions during the year.



DIVIDEND

To conserve resources for business growth of the Company, your Directors do not recommend payment of
any dividend on equity shares for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2020.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Pursuant to Section 29C (i) of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987, the Company is required to transfer at
least 20% of the net profits every year to Statutory Reserve. Accordingly, the Company has transferred 3490
Lakh (previous year 2140 Lakh) to a Reserve created for the purpose.

DEPOSITS
During the year under review, the Company has neither invited nor accepted any deposits from the public
within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies

(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

AWARDS AND RECOGNITION

During the year under review, Mr. Rajesh Sharma, the Managing Director of the Company has won India's
Most Inspirational Leader by White Page India.

SHARE CAPITAL

As on March 31, 2020, the Authorized Share Capital of the Company stood at 6,500 Lakh (6,50,00,000
Shares of ¥ 10/- each and the Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company stands at
¥6,071.43 Lakh (comprising of 6,07,14,280 Equity Shares of ¥10/- each). During the Financial Year 2019-20,
the Company has not issued any Equity Shares.

STATUTORY AND REGULATORY COMPLIANCE

The Company has complied with applicable statutory provisions, including those of Companies Act, 2013 and
Income Tax 1961.

The Company is registered with the NHB as a Non—Deposit accepting Housing Finance Company. The
Company has complied with and continues to comply with all applicable provisions of the National Housing
Bank Act, 1987, NHB Directions 2010 and other applicable rules/regulations/guidelines, issued from time to
time.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

As on March 31, 2020, the Company’s Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR), stood at 40.35%, compared to 50.83%
for the previous year, which is well above the regulatory minimum, providing much needed headroom for
fund raising for business operations of the Company.

EMPLOYEES’ STOCK OPTION SCHEME

In accordance with the Employees Stock Options Scheme 2009 of the Holding Company, Capri Global Capital
Limited and based on the approval of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 23,000 (Twenty Three
Thousand Only) Stock Options was granted to the eligible employees of the Company.

CREDIT RATING

During the year, Credit Analysis and Research Ltd. (“CARE”) has reaffirmed rating with respect to the long-
term bank facilities availed by the Company, as follows:



Nature of Borrowing Amount Rating
Long-term Bank Facilities Rs. 1,100 crores CARE A-’ Stable

Furthermore, Acuité Ratings & Research Limited (erstwhile SMERA Ratings Limited) has reaffirmed rating
with respect to the bank facilities availed by the Company, as follows:

Nature of Borrowing Amount Rating
Total Bank Facilities Rs. 1200 crores ACUITE A+ (Read as ACUITE A plus)
Long Term Rating (enhanced from Outlook: Stable
Rs. 600 crores)

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND ITS ADEQUACY

The Financial Statements of the Company comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

The Company has put in place adequate internal controls with reference to accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records and timely preparation of reliable financial information, commensurate with the size,
scale and complexity of operations and ensures compliance with various policies and statutes in keeping
with the organization’s pace of growth, increasing complexity of operations, prevention and detection of
frauds and errors. The design and effectiveness of key controls were tested and no material weaknesses
were observed.

The Audit Committee reviews and evaluates the adequacy of internal financial control and risk management
systems, periodically. Efficacy of Internal control systems are tested periodically by Internal Auditors with
and Internal Control over financial reporting is tested and certified by Statutory Auditors.

The internal financial control system of the Company is supplemented with internal audits, regular reviews
by the management and checks by external auditors.

During the year under review, no material or serious observation has been highlighted for inefficiency or
inadequacy of such controls.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Act read with Companies (Management &
Administration) Rules, 2014 and Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Rajesh Sharma (DIN:00020037),
Managing Director of the Company retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being
eligible, offer himself for re-appointment. Your Board of Directors recommend his appointment.

During the year under review, pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Act and based on the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka (00295213) was
re-appointed as an Independent Additional Director of the Company with effect from April 1, 2019 by the
Board of Directors. Further, Members of the Company at the 13" Annual General Meeting of the Company
held on June 24, 2019 approved his re-appointment as a Non-Executive Independent Director, not liable to
retire by rotation, for a second term of 5 (Five) years with effect from April 1, 2019.

Further, subject to approval of Shareholders, and based on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on February 17, 2020
has approved the re-appointment of Mr. Tilak Raj Bajalia (DIN 02291892) and Ms. Bhagyam Ramani (DIN
00107097) as an Additional Directors (Independent) on the Board of the Company, not liable to retire by
rotation, to hold office for a second term of 5 (five) consecutive years, commencing from April 1, 2020 to
March 31, 2025.

The resolution seeking re-appointment of Mr. Rajesh Sharma (DIN: 00020037), as Director of the Company
and Special Resolutions for the re-appointments of Mr. Tilak Raj Bajalia (DIN 02291892) and Ms. Bhagyam



Ramani (DIN 00107097) as an Independent Directors for the second term of 5 (five) years have been
included in the Notice of the ensuing AGM. Your Directors commend the Resolutions for your approval for
the aforesaid re-appointment.

The brief details of the Directors proposed to be re-appointed as required under Secretarial Standard 2
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India is provided in the Notice convening Annual General
Meeting of the Company.

All the Directors of the Company have confirmed that they are not disqualified to act as Director in terms of
Section 164 of the Act.

As at March 31, 2020, the Company had three Independent Directors including one Woman Director.

In compliance of Section 203 of the Act Mr. Ashish Gupta was appointed as a Chief Financial Officer and
Whole Time Key Managerial Personnel of the Company w.e.f. August 1, 2019. Further, Mr. Abhishekh Kanoi
was appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer and Whole Time Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company w.e.f. November 7, 2019. Ms. Kajal Jakharia has been relieved as a Company Secretary at the
close of business hours on September 20, 2019.

As on the date of this Report, Mr. Rajesh Sharma, Managing Director, Mr. Ashish Gupta, Chief Financial
Officer and Mr. Abhishekh Kanoi, Company Secretary are the Key Managerial Personnel of your Company in
accordance with the provisions of Section 2(51) read with Section 203 of the Act.

Declaration of Independence by Independent Directors & adherence to the Company’s Code of Conduct for
Independent Directors

All the Independent Directors have confirmed to the Board that they meet the criteria of independence as
specified under Section 149(6) of the Act and that they qualify to be independent directors pursuant to the
Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.

Further, all the Independent Directors have affirmed that they have adhered and complied with the
Company’s Code of Conduct for Independent Directors which is framed in accordance with Schedule IV of
the Act. All the Directors meet the ‘Fit and Proper’ criteria as per the policy of the Company and as stipulated
by NHB.

Opinion of the Board regarding Independent Directors re-appointed during the year

Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka (00295213) was re-appointed as an Independent Additional Director of the Company
with effect from April 1, 2019. The Board of Directors acknowledge and confirm with regard to integrity,
expertise and experience of Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka being eligible for discharging his functions and providing
requisite contribution to the Board as an Independent Director of the Company.

Board Meetings

The Board of the Directors of the Company met 6 (Six) times during the year 2019-20 to deliberate on
various matters. The meetings were held on April 27, 2019, August 1, 2019, November 7, 2019, November
26, 2019, February 8, 2020 and February 17, 2020. The intervening gap between the Meetings was within
the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises of Independent Directors namely Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka (Chairman), Ms.
Bhagyam Ramani, and Mr. T. R. Bajalia as other members. Four meetings of the Audit Committee were held
during the year on April 27, 2019, August 1, 2019, November 7, 2019, and February 8, 2020.



Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprises of Ms. Bhagyam Ramani (Chairman), Mr. Beni
Prasad Rauka and Mr. T. R. Bajalia as other members. Four meetings of the Nomination & Remuneration
were held during the year on April 27, 2019, August 1, 2019, November 7, 2019 and February 17, 2020. The
Company has received the ‘Fit and Proper’ declarations from all the Directors of the Company, which have
been taken on record by the NRC.

Nomination and Remuneration Policy

The Board of Directors of the Company has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee framed a policy for selection of Directors, determining Directors independence and payment of
remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees. The Nomination and
Remuneration Policy is enclosed as Annexure |.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

In accordance with the requirements of the provisions of Section 135 of the Act, the Company has
constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (‘CSR’) Committee. The Committee comprises of Mr. Beni
Prasad Rauka (Chairman), Ms. Bhagyam Ramani and Mr. Rajesh Sharma as other members. The Company
has also formulated a CSR Policy. Two meetings of the CSR Committee were held on April 27, 2019 and
August 1, 2019.

The CSR Policy of the Company, inter alia, lists the activities that can be undertaken or supported by the
Company for CSR as envisaged in Schedule VIl of the Act, composition and meetings of CSR Committee,
annual allocation for CSR activities, areas of CSR projects, criteria for selection of CSR projects, modalities of
execution/implementation of CSR activities and the monitoring mechanism of CSR activities/projects. The
details of CSR Policy of the Company are available on the website of the Company at
www.caprihomeloans.com .

In terms of Section 135 of the Act, the details of the CSR spent during the year under review is provided in
the Annual Report on CSR activities as required under Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014 and attached to this Report as Annexure .

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee comprises of Mr. Rajesh Sharma(Chairman), Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka and
Ms. Bhagyam Ramani as other members. Three meetings of the Risk Management Committee were held
during the year on August 1, 2019, November 7, 2019 and February 8, 2020. The recommendations of the
Risk Management Committee have been accepted by the Board.

The Company follows a proactive risk management policy, aimed at protecting its assets and employees
while at the same time ensuring growth and continuity of its business. Regular updates on the development

in the business environment and the risk mitigation initiatives are provided to Board at its meeting.

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

The Company has devised a Policy for performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees, and other
individual Directors (including Independent Directors) which includes criteria for Performance Evaluation of
the Non-Executive Directors and Executive Directors. The evaluation process inter alia considers attendance
of Directors at Board and Committee Meetings, acquaintance with business, communicating inter se Board
Members, effective participation, domain knowledge, compliance with code of conduct, vision and strategy,
benchmarks established by global peers, etc., which is in compliance with applicable laws, regulations and
guidelines
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The Board carried out annual evaluation of the performance of the Board, its Committees and Individual
Directors and Chairperson. The Chairman of the respective Board Committees shared the report on
evaluation with the respective Committee Members. The performance of each Committee was evaluated by
the Board, based on report on evaluation received from respective Board Committees. The reports on
performance evaluation of the Individual Directors were reviewed by the Chairman of the Board.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) read with Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to Directors’ Responsibility
Statement, the Directors hereby confirm that:

(@) in preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and
there are no material departure;

(b) they have selected appropriate accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for that period;

(c) they have taken proper and sufficient care for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities;

(d) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(e) they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such internal
financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

(f) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

AUDITORS

A. STATUTORY AUDITORS
In terms of Section 139 of the Act, Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Firm
Registration Number: 117366W /W-100018 ), were appointed as statutory auditors of the Company for
a period of five years from the conclusion of the 11 Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the
16" Annual General Meeting of the Company.
Auditors’ Report
There are no qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimers made by the Statutory Auditors,
in their Audit Report for the financial year 2019-20.

B. SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 204 of the Act read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company had appointed M/s. Maks & Co.,
Company Secretaries in Practice (ICSI Registration Number FRN: P2018UP067700), for conducting
Secretarial Audit. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 is appended
to this Report as Annexure lll. There are no qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimers
made by Secretarial Auditors, in their Audit Report for the financial year 2019-20, however, the
Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year 2018-19 was not annexed with Directors Report and filed
with the Registrar of Companies in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The
Company has subsequently obtained Secretarial Audit Report from M/s D M & Associates for the
Financial Year 2018-19 and approved by the Board of directors on August 1,2019. Further, there was no
Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) as on 31st March 2019.The Company has appointed CFO as required
under Section 203(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 with effect from August 1, 2019.



C. REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

During the year under review, neither the Statutory Auditors nor the Secretarial Auditor of the Company
have reported any instances of frauds committed in the Company by its Officers or Employees to the Audit
Committee under Section 143(12) of the Act and therefore, no detail is required to be disclosed under
Section 134(3)(ca) of the Act.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECRETARIAL STANDARD

During the year under review, the Company complies with all applicable mandatory Secretarial Standards
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Board of Directors of the Company has formed a Risk Management Committee to frame, implement,
review and monitor the risk management plan for the Company and ensuring its effectiveness in addition to
Asset Liability Management Committee monitors and manages the liquidity and interest rate risks. The
Company have a risk management framework and the Committee on timely basis informs the Board
Members about risk assessment and minimization procedures which in the opinion of the Committee may
threaten the existence of the Company, if any. The Audit Committee has additional oversight in the area of
credit & liquidity risks, interest rate risk, and operational risk. The major risks identified by the businesses
and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis.

The Company follows a proactive risk management policy, aimed at protecting its assets and employees
while at the same time ensuring growth and continuity of its business. Regular updates on the development

in the business environment and the risk mitigation initiatives are provided to Board at its meeting.

The development and implementation of risk management policy has been covered in the Management
Discussion and Analysis, which forms part of this Report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED INFORMATION

There are no employees drawing remuneration in excess of amount prescribed as per the provisions of
section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Board of Directors of the Company has formulated a policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions,
pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Act. The same is displayed on the website of the Company at
www.caprihomeloans.com and is enclosed herewith as Annexure IV. This policy deals with the review and
approval of related party transactions. All related party transactions are placed before the Audit Committee
for review and approval.

During the year under review, all the related party transactions were entered in the ordinary course of
business and on arm’s length basis. All related party transactions as required under Indian Accounting
Standards - 24 (Ind AS-24) are reported in Note 44 of the Financial Statements of the Company.

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Act read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, there

are no related party transactions that are required to be reported under Section 188(1) of the Act, as
prescribed in Form AOC-2.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to sub-section 3(a) of Section 134 and subsection (3) of Section 92 of the Act, read with Rule 12(1)
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of the Annual Return as at
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March 31, 2020 in Form No. MGT-9, can be accessed on the Company’s website at
www.caprihomeloans.com

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Management Discussion and Analysis report for the year under review as required under Housing
Finance Companies — Corporate Governance (NHB) Directions, 2016 is forming part of the Directors Report
as Annexure V.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION
AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Company has adopted zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has formulated a Policy
for on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at Work Place in line with the provisions
of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition And Redressal) Act, 2013 (“POSH
Act”) and the Rules framed thereunder for prevention and redressal of complaints of sexual harassment at
workplace. Your Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Committee
under the POSH Act.

During the year under review, no complaints were received from any of the employees.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The Company being engaged in the financial services activities, its operations are not energy intensive nor
does it require adoption of specific technology and hence information in terms of Section 134(3)(m) of the
Act read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to the Company. Nevertheless, the
Company is vigilant on the need for conservation of energy.

There was no inflow or outflow of foreign exchange during the year under review.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

The Company being a housing finance company, the provisions of Section 186 of the Act pertaining to
granting of loans to any persons or bodies corporate and giving of guarantees or providing security in
connection with loans to any other bodies corporate or persons are not applicable to the Company.

As regards investments made by the Company, the details of the same are provided under Notes in the
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2020, forming part of this Annual Report.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
which have occurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate and the
date of this Report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS

During the financial year 2019-20, there were no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or
Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern status and the Company’s operations in future. Further, no
penalties have been levied by the NHB or any other regulator during the year under review, however, NHB
has levied a penalty of Rs, 65,000 vide letter dated May 1, 2020 wherein the Loan to Value (LTV) exceeded
the prescribed NHB norms in few cases. The Penalty has since been paid and the Management has taken
corrective action by setting up system control, wherein system itself calculates LTV considering multiple loan
exposure on the same property.
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MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

The maintenance of cost records, for the services rendered by the Company, is not required pursuant to
Section 148 (1) of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014.
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Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Nomination and Remuneration Policy

This Policy has been laid down on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Board and is in compliance with the requirements of the Section 178 Companies Act, 2013.

1.1  Obijectives

The Policy lays down the:
(i) Criteria for determining inter-alia qualification, positive attributes and independence of Directors for
their appointment on the Board of the Company;
(ii) Criteria for payment of remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees.

1.2 Definitions
i. “Board” means Board of Directors of the Company.

ii. “Company” means “Capri Global Housing Finance Limited.”

iii. “Employees’ Stock Option” means the option given to the Directors, Officers or Employees of a company
or of its holding company or subsidiary company or companies, if any, which gives such Directors, Officers
or Employees, the benefit or right to purchase, or to subscribe for, the shares of the Company at a future

date at a pre-determined price.

iv. A. ‘fit and proper ‘shall mean an individual who is:

a. more than thirty years in age;
b. agraduate;
c. has minimum five years experience;
d. a person of integrity, reputation and character in the opinion of the Committee;
V. “Independent Director” means a director referred to in Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013.
Vi “Key Managerial Personnel” (KMP) means
a) Chief Executive Officer or the Managing / Executive Director or the Manager,
b) Company Secretary,
c) Whole-time Director,
d) Chief Financial Officer and
e) Such other officer as may be prescribed.
vii. “Committee” shall mean the Nomination & Remuneration Committee of Board of Directors of the

Company, constituted in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

viii. “Policy or This Policy” means, “Nomination and Remuneration Policy.”
iX. “Managerial Person” means the Managing Director, Whole-time Director and/or Manager.
X. “Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services rendered

by him and includes perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act, 1961.

Xi. “Senior Management” means, personnel of the Company who are members of its core management team
excluding Board of Directors and who may be qualified to become directors.

1.3 Interpretation

Terms that have not been defined in this Policy shall have the same meaning assigned to them in the Companies
Act, 2013, SEBI Act, 1992, as notified by the Securities and Exchange Board of India from time to time.
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1.5

Appointment and Removal of Managerial Person, Director, Key Management Personnel and Senior
Management Personnel

Appointment criteria and qualifications:

a)

The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the
person for appointment as Managerial Person, Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel who
may be qualified to become directors and recommend to the Board his / her appointment.

The Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise and experience possessed by
a person are sufficient / satisfactory for the designated position.

With respect to appointment of a Senior Management Personnel other than the one mentioned
above, the Human Resource Department with the consultation/advice/recommendations of the
respective Functional Heads/Promoter Director of the Company, as the case may be, can decide on
their appointments and the same need not be recommended to the Committee/Board as the case
may be.

Term / Tenure:

a)

c)

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint a person as its Managerial Person by passing of a
resolution and disclosure of such appointment in the Directors Report forming part of the Annual
Report.

No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive Terms, but such
Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to
become an Independent Director.

Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years, be
appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly.
Term can be for a maximum period of five years.

the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of Boards on
which such Independent Director serves, is restricted to seven listed companies as an
Independent Director and three listed companies as an Independent Director in case such person
is serving as a Whole-time Director of the Company.

Removal:

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), rules made there
under or under any other applicable Act, rules and regulations, the Committee may recommend, to the
Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Managerial Person, Director, subject to the
provisions and compliance of the Act, rules and regulations.

Retirement:

The Managerial Person, Director, KMP and Senior Management shall retire as per the applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to
retain the Managerial Person, Director, and KMP, Senior Management in the same position / remuneration
or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company.

Disqualifications for Appointment of Directors

A person shall not be eligible for appointment as director of the company if:

a)
b)
c)

he is of unsound mind and stands so declared by a competent court;
he is undischarged insolvent;
he has applied to be adjudicated as an insolvent and his application is pending;



d) He has been convicted by a court of any offence, weather involving moral turpitude or otherwise, and
sentenced in respect thereof to imprisonment for not less than six months and a period of five years
has not elapsed from the date of expiry of the sentence:

Provided that if a person has been convicted of any offence and sentenced in respect thereof to
imprisonment for a period of seven years or more, he shall not be eligible to be appointed as a
director in any company:

1) An order disqualifying him for appointment as a director has been passed by a court or
Tribunal and the order in force;

2) He has not paid any calls in respect of any shares of the company held by him whether alone
or jointly with others and six months have elapsed from the last day fixed for the payment of
the call;

3) He has been convicted of the offence dealing with related party transactions under section
188 at any time during the last preceding five years; or

4) He has not complied with sub-section (3) of section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013.

ii. A person who has been a Director of the company which:

a) has not filed financial statements or annual returns for any continuous period of three financial years;
or

b) has failed to repay the deposits accepted by it or pay interest thereon or to redeem any debentures
on the due date or pay interest due thereon or pay dividend declared and such failure to pay or
redeem continues for one year of more,

shall be ineligible to be appointed as a director of the Company for a period of five years from the date
on which the other company fails to do so.

iii. A person shall not be eligible for appointment and continuance as a Director, if he / she is not found ‘fit
and proper’ by the Committee.

1.6  Remuneration Policy

Remuneration Policy of Company is designed to attract, motivate, and retain manpower in a competitive
environment considering qualification, positive attribute, integrity and independence, and is guided by the
common reward framework and set of principles and objectives. The Remuneration Policy applies to the
Company’s Senior Management Personnel, including its Key Managerial Person and the Board of Directors.

The policy captures remuneration strategies, policies and practices of Company, including compensation, variable-
compensation, equity-based plans and the process for the measurement and assessment of employee and
executive performance. The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to the Managerial Person, Director,
KMP and Senior Management Personnel (who may be qualified to become directors) will be determined by the
Committee and recommended to the Board for approval.

1.6.1 Remuneration Strategy for Employees at Company

The Company adopts a total compensation philosophy in rewarding employees. The Total compensation package
for the employees comprises of Fixed and Variable Component. Fixed pay consists of the base salary and any
recurring, regular allowances payable in the specific location. Variable pay includes performance bonuses and
ESOP’s for eligible employees.

The level of Total compensation is designed to be appropriate to attract, retain and motivate employees to
contribute their best. In determining the Total compensation of employees, the Company takes into account the
role and its responsibilities, the individuals’ and teams’ performance, and the Company’s performance, as well as
market factors. The Company’s remuneration strategy is market-driven and aims at attracting and retaining high
caliber talent.

Factors such as profitability and achievement of key performance indicators are taken into consideration, in
determining the bonus pool for the Company and its business units. Individual bonus allocation is based on



performance against various set of pre-defined objectives.

The strategy is in consonance with the existing industry practice and is directed towards rewarding performance,
based on review of achievements, on a periodical basis.

16.2

Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

The Company shall review, at least annually, the Key Management personnel’s remuneration arrangements in light
of current market benchmarks and expert advice on remuneration levels and, with due consideration to law and
corporate governance principles.

Remuneration of the Key Management Personnel consists of a fixed component and a variable performance
incentive. The annual appraisal of the Key Management personnel is based on a detailed performance evaluation
of their Key Performance Indicators (KPI’s)

Vi.

Vii.

viii.

a)
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Fixed Component: Consists of Basic Pay (Usually 40%-60% of the gross Fixed Salary).

Perquisites: In the form of house rent allowance/ accommodation, reimbursement of medical expenses,
conveyance, children education, telephone, communication equipments like Ipad’s etc.

Retirement Benefits: Pension contributions, Gratuity payments are made in accordance with applicable
laws and employment agreements.

Severance payments: In accordance with termination clauses in employment agreements, the severance
payment is in accordance with applicable local legal framework.

Personal benefits: Based on employment agreements and Company policy, Company Car and Driver is
provided to specific grade.

Medical Insurance — Coverage of Rs. 5 Lacs every year to the personnel, his/her spouse, two children and
parents (In case of female employees they can choose the option for including their in-laws in lieu of her
parents).

Term Insurance — Coverage between Rs. 50 Lacs to Rs. 1 Cr. based on the grade.

Variable pay is linked to the below three factors:

a) the financial results of the company;

b) targets achieved;

¢) theindividual performance and that of the department/team

Annual Performance Linked Bonus: Individual bonus allocation takes performance ratings and
performance against various set of objectives mentioned below into consideration:

In the beginning of the year the Board sets the organization performance objectives based on qualitative
and quantitative measures.

These objectives are reviewed periodically to ensure they remain consistent with the Company’s priorities
and the changing nature of the Company’s business.

These objectives form part of the performance targets for the Managerial Personnel.

Performance against these objectives is reviewed annually by the Board and is reflected in the Managerial
Personnel’s remuneration review.

Remuneration of Non-executive Directors including Independent Directors

The Non-Executive Directors of the Company (who are not in the employment of the Company and/or its
subsidiaries/associates) shall be paid sitting fees as per the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.



Commission, if any, payable to NEDs shall be approved by the Board of the Company based on the
recommendation of the Committee.

An independent Director shall not be entitled to any Stock Options of the Company.
1.7  Deviations from the Policy

Deviations on elements of this policy in extraordinary circumstances, when deemed necessary in the interests of
the Company, will be made if there are specific reasons to do so in an individual case.

1.8 Amendments

The Remuneration policy may be reviewed by the Board of the Company on the recommendation of the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board.
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CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILTY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

A brief outline of the Company’s Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) Policy, including overview of projects or programmes proposed to be undertaken and a
reference to the web-link to the CSR Policy and projects or programmes.

The Company’s CSR Policy is based on the firm belief that there can be nothing better than enriching the human capital of the society which can provide a
sustainable socio-economic impact. The Company is on a mission of creating a social impact through diverse CSR activities and firmly believes that the mandate
of the Company does not end with multiplying returns for our shareholders but must fulfil larger responsibility towards the society. Company strives to have a
positive impact on the communities in which we live and operate. The Company’s CSR initiative has been directed to provide to the most economically and
socially marginalized people, particularly children, women and the differently abled, an easy access to better education and vocational training. For more
information please refer CSR policy on https://www.caprihomeloans.com/assets/pdf/CGHFL CSR POLICY.pdf

The activities and projects undertaken are within the broad framework of schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013

The Composition of the CSR Committee: The Company has a CSR Committee of directors comprising Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka, Chairperson of the Committee, Ms.
Bhagyam Ramani and Mr. Rajesh Sharma.

Average Net Profit of the Company for last three financial years for the purpose of computation of CSR: 2727.52 Lakh
Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 3 above): *14.55 Lakh

Details of CSR spend for the Financial Year:

a) Total amount spent during the Financial Year: ¥14.55 Lakh

b) Amount Unspent: NIL
¢) Manner in which the amount spent during the Financial Year is detailed below:


https://www.caprihomeloans.com/assets/pdf/CGHFL_CSR_POLICY.pdf
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CSR project or activity identified Sector in which the Projects or programs Amount Amount spent on Cumulative Amount
project is covered 1) Local area or other Outlay the projects or expenditure spent: Direct
2) Specify the State and (Budget) programs up to the or through
district where project or Sub-heads reporting implementing
N projects or programs was program (Amount ¥ in period agency
N<') undertaken wise Lakhs) (Amount ¥ in
(Amountin | 1) Direct Lakhs)
Z Lakhs) expenditure on
projects or
programs
2) Overheads
Contribution to the Corpus of Capri | Areas specified NA NA Direct — NIL NA Direct — NIL
Foundation towards CSR activities as per | under Schedule VII Overheads - NIL
1 | the focus areas and program areas listed | of the Companies
in CSR Policy of CGHFL Act, 2013
Capri Health Initiative — Clause (i) of Jodhpur, Rajasthan 14.55 Direct — 14.55 14.55 Direct — NIL
Project on Combating Malnutrition Schedule VII (Local Area) Overheads - NIL
, Supported Candidates (2000 Children) Health Care Through
Implementing
Agency —14.55
(Akshaya Patra)
Total 14.55 14.55 14.55

*Capri Foundation is an implementing organization, for creating positive social impact through implementing innovative CSR activities and development programs.
Capri Foundation is registered under Bombay Public Trust Act 1950.

6. In case the Company has failed to spend the two percent of the average net profit of the last three financial years or any part thereof, the reasons for not
spending the amount in its Board’s Report: Not Applicable

7. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the
Company: The CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy are in compliance with the CSR objective and Policy of the

Company
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(Rajesh Sharma)
Managing Director

DIN: 00020037
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MR-3
Secretarial Audit Report
For the financial period ended March 31, 2020
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
502, Tower A, Peninsula Business Park,
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel,
Mumbai - 400013, Maharashtra, India
CIN: U65990MH2006PLC161153

We have conducted secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
(hereinafter referred as ‘the Company’). The secretarial audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Capri Global Housing Finance Limited’s books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers and authorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the
audit period covering the financial period ended on March 31, 2020 (commencing from April 1,
2019 to March 31, 2020), complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent based on
the management representation letter/ confirmation received from the management, in the manner
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter. The members are requested to read this report along
with our letter dated May 9, 2020 annexed to this report as Annexure — A.

1. We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial period ended on March 31, 2020 according to the
applicable provisions of:

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) and the rules made thereunder;

i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the regulations and bye—laws framed thereunder;

iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period); and

V) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period);

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015 (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period);
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c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit
period);

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014 (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period);

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008 (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period);

f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an issue and share transfer
agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with clients to the
extent of securities issued;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009 (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period);

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018
(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period); and

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015(Not applicable to the Company during the audit
period).

2. We, based upon the Management Representation, further report that there are adequate systems
and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to
monitor and ensure compliance with the following pertinent laws, rules, regulations and guidelines
as specifically applicable to the Company and the Company is generally regular in compliance
with these laws, rules, regulations and guidelines, during the financial year commencing from
April 01, 2019 to March 31, 2020:

The National Housing Bank Act, 1987;

The Housing Finance Companies(NHB) Directions, 2010;

Master Circular on Fair Practice Code for Housing Finance Companies;

Master Circular-Housing Finance Companies- Corporate Governance (NHB) Directions,
2016;

e. Master Circular — Miscellaneous Instructions to all Housing Finance Companies; and

f.  The Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002 read with the rules made thereunder.

oo o

3. We have also relied upon compliance reports from the management, the representation made by
the Company and its officers for systems and mechanism framed by the Company to ensure the
compliance with general laws like Labour Laws, Employees Provident Funds Act, Employees
State Insurance Act, as applicable to the Company.

4. We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
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i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, with respect to
board and general meetings (hereinafter referred as ‘Secretarial Standards’). We noted that
the Company is generally regular in complying with the Secretarial Standards; and

ii) The Listing Agreements entered with Stock Exchanges read with the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015. (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit period)

5. During the period under review, to the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the Company has been generally regular in compliance
with the provisions of the Acts, Rules, Regulations, Secretarial Standards as mentioned above
except to the extent that Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year 2018-19 was not annexed
with Directors Report and filed with the Registrar of Companies in compliance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. However, subsequently the Company has obtained
Secretarial Audit Report from M/s D M & Associates for the Financial Year 2018-19.

We further report that there was no Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) as on 315t March 2019.The
Company has appointed CFO as required under Section 203(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 with
effect from August 01, 2019.

6. We further report that compliance of applicable financial laws including Direct and Indirect Tax
Laws by the Company has not been reviewed in this audit since the same has been subject to
review by the Statutory Auditors and other designated professionals.

7. We further report that:

i) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non—Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The Board also has a woman
director. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

ii) Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings. Notice of Board
meetings was sent at least seven days in advance and where any Board Meeting was held on
shorter notice the same was conducted in compliance with the Act and system exists for
directors to seek and obtain further information and clarifications on the agenda items before
the meetings and for their meaningful participation at the meetings. Decisions of
Board/Committee were carried through majority. We are informed that there were no
dissenting members’ views on any of the matters during the year that were required to be
captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

iii) There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

iv) We further report that during the audit period the Company had following specific actions
having bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules,
regulations, standards, guidelines etc.:
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a) The approval of the Shareholders has been obtained at the 13" Annual General Meeting of
the Company held on June 24, 2019 for the following:

- To borrow in excess of the paid up Capital and free reserves of the Company not
exceeding 32000 Crore pursuant to Section 180(1) (c) of the Act;

- To create security on the assets of the Company pursuant to Section 180(1) (a) of the
Act; and

- To issue non—convertible Debentures for an amount not exceeding ¥500 Crore
pursuant to the provisions of Section 23, 42 and 71 of the Act.

Note: Due to COVID-19 outbreak worldwide and lockdown imposed by Government of India and
respective State Governments since March 24, 2020 till date of this report, we have not been able to do
process audit and physical verification of certain books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and same have been verified electronically either on
emails or virtual data room.

For MAKS & Co.,
Company Secretaries
[FRN P2018UP067700]
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Mohit Maheshwari N/
Partner NIy Sect®/
Membership No.: F9565 T
COP No.: 19946

UDIN: F009565B000219038

Date: May 9, 2020
Place: Noida
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ANNEXURE —-A TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT DATED MAY 9, 2020

To,

The Members,

Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
502, Tower A, Peninsula Business Park,
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel,
Mumbai, Maharasthra - 400013, India

CIN:  L72900DL2009PLC341980

Our Secretarial Audit Report dated May 9, 2020 is to be read with this letter.

1.

For

The compliance of provisions of all laws, rules, regulations and standards applicable to Capri Global
Housing Finance Limited (‘the Company’) is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
Our examination was limited to the verification of records and procedures on test check basis for the
purpose of issue of the Secretarial Audit Report.

Maintenance of secretarial and other records of applicable laws is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to issue Secretarial Audit Report, based on the
audit of the relevant records maintained and furnished to us by the Company, along with explanations
where so required.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis
to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and
practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for the purpose of issue of the Secretarial Audit
Report.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of
the Company as it is taken care in the statutory audit.

We have obtained the management’s representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events, wherever required.

This Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

MAKS & Co.,

Company Secretaries
[FRN P2018UP067700]
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Annexure - IV

CAPRIGLOBAL

HOUSING FINANCE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS POLICY

(Approved by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on October 28, 2017 and
further amended on August 1, 2019)
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CIN: U65990MH2006PLC161153
Regd. & Corporate Off: 502, Tower A, Peninsula Business Park,
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai — 400013, Maharashtra, (India).
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Capri Global Housing Finance Limited

POLICY ON RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

INTRODUCTION

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Capri Global Housing Finance Limited (the “Company” or “CGHFL”),
has adopted the following policy and procedures with regard to Related Party Transactions as defined
below.

This policy is to regulate transactions between the Company and its Related Parties based on the laws
and regulations as applicable to the Company.

POLICY OBJECTIVES

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules framed thereunder contain detailed provisions relating
to Related Party Transactions. This Policy is framed as per the requirement of Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder and “Housing Finance Companies — Corporate
Governance (National Housing Bank) Directions, 2016” issued by the National Housing Bank (NHB) vide
Notification No. NHB.HFC.CG-DIR.1/MD&CEOQ/2016 dated February 09, 2017.

The objective of this policy and procedure is to ensure that transactions between the Company and its
related parties are based on principles of transparency and arm’s length pricing as provided under the
Section 188 of the Companies Act 2013. Likewise, this policy aims at preventing and providing guidance in
situations of potential conflict of interests in the implementation of transactions involving such related
parties.

DEFINITIONS

‘Applicable Law’ includes (a) the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) including Companies (Amendment) Act,
2017 and rules made thereunder; (b) Indian Accounting Standards; (c) “Housing Finance Companies —
Corporate Governance (National Housing Bank) Directions, 2016” issued by the National Housing Bank
(NHB) vide Notification No. NHB.HFC.CG-DIR.1/MD&CEO/2016 dated February 09, 2017 and (d) any other
statute, law, standards, regulations or other governmental instruction relating to Related Party
Transactions.

“Audit Committee or Committee” means Committee of Board of Directors of the Company
constituted under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

“Arm’s Length Transaction” means a transaction between two Related Parties that is conducted as if they
were unrelated, so that there is no conflict of interest (as provided under the Section 188 of the
Companies Act 2013).

“Board” means Board of Directors of the Company.

“Key Managerial Personnel” means key managerial personnel as defined under the Companies Act,
2013 and includes:
i Managing Director, or Executive Director or Chief Executive Officer or manager and in their
absence, a whole- time director;
ii. Company Secretary;



iii. Chief Financial Officer; and

iv. such other officer, not more than one level below the directors who is in whole-time employment,
designated as key managerial personnel by the Board; and
V. such other officer as may be prescribed.

“Material Related Party Transaction” mean such Related Party Transaction(s) to be entered into
individually or taken together with previous Related Party Transaction(s) during a financial year, which
exceeds the threshold limits as specified under Rule 15 (3) of Companies (Meetings of Board and its
Powers) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time.

“Policy” means this Policy on Related Party Transactions.

“Related Party” means any person who is
i. a related party under Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules issued thereunder;
ii. a related party under the applicable accounting standards; or
iii. any other person or entity covered under Applicable Laws.

“Related Party Transaction” shall mean all transactions as defined under Section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 and any transaction between the Company and any Related Party which includes transfer of
resources, services or obligations between the Company and related party, regardless of whether a price is
charged and a "transaction" with a related party shall be construed to include a single transaction or a
group of transactions in a contract.

“Relative” means Relative as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and means anyone who is related
to another, if —

i. they are members of a Hindu Undivided Family ;

ii. they are husband and wife ; or

iii. one person is related to the other in the following manner;

a) Father (including step-father);

) Mother (including step-mother);
¢) Son (including step-son);
) Son’s wife;
) Daughter;
f) Daughter’s husband;
g) Brother (including step-brother);
h) Sister (including step-sister).

POLICY

All Related Party Transactions must be reported to the Audit Committee and referred for approval by the
Committee in accordance with this Policy.

4.1 Identification of Related Party and Potential Related Party Transactions

Each Director and Key Managerial Personnel is responsible for providing notice to the Board or Audit
Committee of any potential Related Party Transaction involving him or her or his or her Relative, including
any additional information about the transaction that the Board/Audit Committee may reasonably
request. Board/Audit Committee will determine whether the transaction does, in fact, constitute a
Related Party Transaction requiring compliance with this Policy.

4.2 Prohibitions related to Related Party Transactions

a. All Related Party Transactions shall require prior approval of Audit Committee.



b. All Material Related Party Transactions shall require approval of the shareholders and no related
party shall vote to approve such resolutions whether the entity is a related party to the particular
transaction or not.

Provided that sub-clauses 4.2(a) and 4.2(b) shall not be applicable to the following Related Party
Transactions and shall not require approval of Audit Committee or Shareholders:

i transaction that involves paying compensation to a director or Key Managerial Personnel in
connection with his or her duties to the Company or any of its subsidiaries or associates, including
the reimbursement of reasonable business and travel expenses incurred in the ordinary course of
business;

ii. transaction in which the Related Party’s interest arises solely from ownership of securities
issued by the Company and all holders of such securities receive the same benefits pro-rata
as the Related Party;

iii. transactions entered into between the Company and any of its wholly owned subsidiaries whose
accounts are consolidated with the Company and placed before the shareholders at the general
meeting for their approval.

4.3 Review and Approval of Related Party Transactions

Related Party Transactions will be referred to the next regularly scheduled meeting of Audit Committee for
review and approval. Any member of the Committee falling under the definition of Related Party shall not
vote to approve the relevant transactions irrespective of whether the entity is a party to the particular
transaction or not.

To review a Related Party Transaction, the Committee will be provided with all relevant material
information of the Related Party Transaction, including name of the related party and nature of
transaction, period of transaction, the material terms of the transaction including the value, if any, any
advance paid or received for the contract or arrangement, the business purpose of the transaction, the
benefits to the Company and to the Related Party, and any other information relevant or important for the
Committee to take a decision on the proposed transaction. . In determining whether to approve a Related
Party Transaction, the Committee will consider the following factors, among others, to the extent relevant
to the Related Party Transaction:

a) Whether the terms of the Related Party Transaction are fair and on arms length basis to the Company
and would apply on the same basis if the transaction did not involve a Related Party;

b) Whether there are any compelling business reasons for the Company to enter into the Related
Party Transaction and the nature of alternative transactions, if any;

c) Whether the Related Party Transaction would affect the independence of an independent director;

d) Whether the Company was notified about the Related Party Transaction before its commencement
and if not, why pre-approval was not sought and whether subsequent ratification if allowed would be
detrimental to the Company; and

e) Whether the Related Party Transaction would present an improper conflict of interest for any director
or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, taking into account the size of the transaction, the
overall financial position of the director, executive officer or other Related Party, the direct or indirect
nature of the director’s, Key Managerial Personnel’s or other Related Party’s interest in the
transaction and the ongoing nature of any proposed relationship and any other factors the
Board/Committee deems relevant.

If the Committee determines that a Related Party Transaction should be brought before the Board, or if
the Board elects to review any such matter or it is mandatory under any law for Board to approve the
Related Party Transaction, then the considerations set forth above shall apply to the Board’s review and
approval of the matter, with such modification as may be necessary or appropriate under the
circumstances. If the related party transaction needs to be approved at a general meeting of the
shareholders by way of a resolution pursuant to the applicable laws, the Board shall ensure that the same



be put up for approval by the shareholders of the Company.

Approval Policy framework is summarized herein below:

Audit Committee Approval Board Approval Shareholder's Approval
All Related Party | a) Related Party Transactions referred | Approval by resolution for: Related
Transactions by Audit Committee for approval of | Party Transactions not in Ordinary
the Board; Course of Business or not on arm's
b) Related Party Transactions as | length basis and crosses threshold
required under the  statute | limit as prescribped under the
applicable to the Company. Companies Act, 2013 applicable to

the Company.

DECISION REGARDING TRANSACTIONS IN ORDINARY COURSE OF BUSINESS AND AT ARM’S LENGTH

The Audit Committee and the Board shall after considering the material placed before them will judge if
the transaction is in the ordinary course of business and meets the arm’s length requirements.

OMNIBUS APPROVAL BY AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In case of certain frequent / repetitive / regular / transactions / with Related Parties which are in the
ordinary course of business of the Company, the Audit Committee may grant an omnibus approval for such
Related Party Transactions proposed to be entered into by the Company. The approval shall be valid for a
period of one year, however the same needs to be ratified by the Board at the next Board Meeting.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS NOT APPROVED UNDER THIS POLICY

In the event the Company becomes aware of a Related Party Transaction that has not been approved
under this Policy prior to its consummation, the matter shall be reviewed by the Committee. The
Committee shall consider all of the relevant facts and circumstances regarding the Related Party
Transaction, and shall evaluate all options available to the Company, including ratification, revision or
termination of the Related Party Transaction. The Committee shall also examine the facts and
circumstances pertaining to the failure of reporting such Related Party Transaction to the Committee
under this Policy, and shall take any such action it deems appropriate.

In any case, where the Board / Shareholders decides not to ratify a Related Party Transaction that has
been commenced without its approval, the Committee or Board or shareholders, as appropriate, may
direct additional actions including, but not limited to, immediate discontinuation or rescission of the
transaction or modification of the transaction to make it acceptable for ratification.. While reviewing any
Related Party Transaction, the Committee has authority to modify or waive any procedural requirements
of this Policy.

Where any related party transaction is entered into, without obtaining the consent of the Board /
shareholders and if it is not ratified by the Board or, as the case may be, by the shareholders at a meeting
within three months from the date on which such related party transaction was entered into, such
related party transaction shall be voidable at the option of the Board or, as the case may be, of the
shareholders.

DISSEMINATION

This Policy and any amendment thereto shall be posted on the website of the Company and shall be
disclosed in the Annual Report.




POLICY REVIEW

This Policy is established based on the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per requirement of
the NHB Notification No. NHB. HFC. CG-DIR.1/MD & CEQ/2016 dated 9th February, 2017.

In case of any subsequent changes in the provisions of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder, the Act
and its Rules would prevail over the Policy and the provisions in the Policy would be modified in due course
to make it consistent with law. The Board shall have the right to amend the Policy from time to time, based
on recommendations of Audit Committee.

The Policy shall be reviewed every year along with the other policies of the company. However, it shall be
reviewed earlier if need arises for the same and/ or under special circumstances, in case of a change in law.



Annexure - V
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

Overview

Capri Global Housing Limited (“CGHFL”) is a Housing finance Company registered with National Housing
Bank. It is a wholly owned subsidiary of Capri Global Capital Limited and is engaged in the business of
providing home finance to “unbanked, underserved and unserved”. Housing Finance Industry is being
viewed as an engine of economic growth with a major role to play in the country’s development.
Favorable structural factors, such as under penetration of the mortgage market, the large gap between
housing demand and supply, improved affordability as a result of tax incentives, the encouraging
regulatory environment and positive demographic trends, are expected to fuel continued growth in the
housing finance market.

Industry Structure and Developments
Affordable Housing Finance

India is the world’s second most populous nation, with over 1.3 billion people, over 70% of which
encompasses the rural market. There is a huge shortage of housing in rural areas (around 43.6 million
homes). Similarly, the opportunity in urban areas is of ~18.8 million homes. According to the RBI, India’s
mortgage penetration hovers around 10%, which presents a huge potential to grow, as compared to
other countries. For instance, China’s mortgage-to-GDP hovers around 18% and developed nations like
US, UK and Denmark have a high ratio of 56%, 67% and 88%, respectively.

Mortgage Penetration

Mortgage-to-GDP Ratio (%)
India China USA UK Denmark
10 18 56 67 88

(Source: RBI)

India has however witnessed a steady growth in mortgage-to-GDP ratio from
8.7% in 2017 to 9.6% (estimated) in 2019 and expected to grow to 10.9%
(estimated) in 2021.

India Mortgage Penetration Growth

Mortgage-to-GDP Ratio Growth (%)
2017 2018 2019 (E) 2020 (E) 2021 (E)
8.7 9.1 9.6 10.2 10.9

(Source: RBI, September 2019)

Credit by NBFCs

Housing Loans

(% in Crore)

FY2017-18

FY 2018-19

Apr—Sep, 2019

13,263

15,491

17,862

(Source: RBI)

The credit deployment for Housing Loans by NBFCs witnessed a growth from Rs. 13,263 crore in FY
2017-18 to Rs. 17,862 for 2Q FY 2019-20.

With urbanisation and nuclearisation taking place at a rapid pace, it is expected that by 2030, nearly
half of India will be residing in urban areas. Existing cities will have to grow beyond their boundaries
and many new cities will come up. The demand for urban affordable housing will grow to 25 million
units.



(Source: RBI, September 2019; IBEF, December 2019)

The Affordable Housing Finance industry received a much-needed growth impetus from the ‘Housing
for All by 2022" Scheme of the Government of India. With its launch in FY 2015, the total housing
shortage, envisaged to be addressed through the Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana — Urban was 20 Mn
people. In a bid to promote the affordable housing segment, the Government of India launched the
Credit-Linked Subsidy Scheme (CLSS). Under this scheme, easy institutional credit is provided to
Economically Weaker Sections (EWS), Low Income Groups (LIG) and Middle Income Groups (MIG)
households for purchase of homes with interest subsidy credited upfront to the borrower’s account
through primary lending institutions, effectively reducing housing loans and EMls. Finally, in FY 2015,
the Government defined affordable housing loans as eligible under priority sector lending & in FY 2018,
granted infrastructure status to affordable housing. The sustained support from the Government has
allowed the affordable housing industry to thrive in India. According to ICRA, India’s mortgage market
has been steadily growing at a CAGR of ~15% over the past 8 years. In FY 2019 the mortgage market
touched * 19.9 Tn. Despite the steady growth in the formal mortgage market, India’s mortgage to GDP
ratio remains lowest amongst the key G20 countries, at just about 10%. Naturally, this has translated
into phenomenal growth in affordable housing finance in India. The home loan portfolio of housing
finance companies grew at an accelerating pace of 18% Y-o-Y till September 30, 2018. Average loan
ticket sizes was around %25 lakh, with more than 80% of the home loan portfolio ranging between %10
lakh - %100 lakh bracket, with better asset quality performance compared to lower and higher ticket
sizes. The growth in housing finance companies’ AUMs can be attributed to two key factors: First is the
ability of HFCs to tap the massive opportunity in affordable housing, and second is the slower credit
growth at banks providing HFCs the room to ramp up faster and continue gaining market share. The
ability of HFCs to implement timely collection and recovery efforts in respect of the delinquent loans —
repossessing the property wherever necessary and selling the same in a timely manner ensures
controlled NPA. Gross nonperforming assets (GNPAs) ratio as on September 30, 2018 was 1.3% (higher
than 1.1% as on March 31, 2018).

The Government of India has addressed this gap with massive impetus to the housing sector, especially
in the affordable housing space with ‘Housing for All’. Under this scheme, 60 million houses are to be
built—40 million in rural areas and 20 million in urban areas by 2022—creating a holistic demand for
the housing industry. In 2018, the National Urban Housing Fund was launched with an outlay of Rs.
60,000 crore. Simultaneously, the National Housing Bank (NHB) has introduced stricter norms around
capitalisation and borrowing limits for housing finance companies (HFCs). In addition to the existing
norms for ECB for affordable housing, the government has announced % 10,000 crore special window
to provide last-mile funding for housing projects that are not NPAs or facing bankruptcy proceedings
under NCLT.

During FY15-FY19, the growth momentum of HFCs sustained on account of government policies on
‘Housing for All’. Though the housing market has been affected by stagnant prices and rising inventory
levels in residential real estate, yet the rising income level in the economy has partly sustained the
demand for housing. However, in the year 2018-19, the HFCs witnessed moderation in growth on
account of liquidity squeeze and the consequent securitisation of their retail assets.

As per Crisil Report for September 2019, the outstanding balances on low cost home loans have grown
from % 154 billion (estimated) in FY 2014-15 to ¥ 517 billion (estimated) in FY 2018-19.

Home loan metrics

Particulars Q3 FY20 Change YoY (%)
Outstanding balance (X in billion) 19,073 10.0%
Number of accounts (in million) 14.20 3.8%
Account-level delinquency rate (90+ 3.36% -7 (bps)
DPD)

(Source: CIBIL)



Home loan balances grew 10% in Q3 FY20, compared with 20.3% in Q3FY19. Balance growth slowed
down for housing finance companies to 7.9% from 23.2% a year earlier.

With more than 62.4 Million units housing shortage and a market size of more than INR 21 Trillion,
housing finance industry is filled with ideas of tremendous market potential. About 95% of the housing
shortage in India is in the low-income segment which comprises of the Low-Income Group and
Economically Weaker Sections. Continuous government initiatives to provide ‘Housing for All by 2022’
under PMAY, credit-linked subsidy and tax benefits have further spurt the demand and supply in the
industry and is aimed to provide housing facilities for the low and mid-income segments at affordable
rates.

Opportunities and Threats

According to consulting firm FSG, low-income housing finance is expected to grow at 30-40% over the
next five years. Two-thirds of India’s population is below 35 years of age with the average age of a first-
time homebuyer in India is about 37-38 years. Thus, over the long term, structural demand for housing
in India will always remain strong. The expanding urbanization, increase in supply of affordable homes,
rising disposable incomes, reasonable interest rates and improved affordability on home loans will drive
the demand in this sector. Further, Government initiatives to drive affordable housing under ‘Housing
for All by 2022, will be a major growth driver for the small and mid-size HFCs.

COVID 19 Impact: Slower than expected recovery of macro economy, domestic as well as globally or a
elongated COVID-19 pandemic going forward will impact financial sector.

Business and Operational Overview
Performance Highlights

(% in lakh)
Particulars Standalone

FY 2019-20 | FY 2018-19 Growth %

Total Revenue 13,946.96 8,889.58 56.89
Total Expenses 10,830.55 7,962.49 36.02
Profit Before Tax 3,116.41 927.09 236.15
Profit After Tax 2,433.26 698.24 248.48
Assets Under Management (AUM) 89,825 79,265 13.32
Earnings per share (%) 4.01 1.88 -
Net Worth 23,153.19 20,720.91 11.74
Net Interest Income (NI) 5,970 3,070 94.46
Net Interest Margin (%) 7.1 5.9 -
Interest Coverage Ratio 1.57 1.36 -
Debt Equity Ratio 3.34 3.26 -
ROA (%) 2.51 1.18 -
ROE (%) 11.09 4.54 -
GNPA (%) 1.21 0.53 -
NNPA (%) 0.39 0.16 -
Book Value per share (%) 38.13 34.13 -




The Gross Income of the Company has registered a growth of 56.89% at ¥13,946.96 Lakh for FY 2019-20
as against ¥8,889.58 Lakh in FY 2018-19. Net Profit grow by 248.48% at ¥2,433.26 Lakh for the FY 2019-
20 as compared to the Net Profit of 2698.24 Lakh in the FY 2018-19 due to better realizations, cost
optimization and better operational controls. The Gross NPA of the Company stood at 1.21% and the
Net NPA was at 0.39% as of March 31, 2020, which is well below the industry averages.

Based on the current indicators of COVID-19 pandemic and future economic conditions, the Company
has prudently considered additional provision for expected credit loss on financial assets as at March 31,
2020.

The Company has been gradually expanding its reach within the affordable housing segment since its
launch in 2016. Branch network within this segment was expanded to 78 branches spread across 6
states. Accordingly, FY20 AUM within housing finance stood at 289,825 Lakh, up 13.32% from last year.

In line with the industry averages, GNPA is contained at 1.21% due to Company’s strict risk mitigation
framework & prudent post-sanction monitoring of loans. The company only lends to the affordable
housing segment & only to those customers that are using the house for self-stay. Average ticket size in
this segment stood at %10 Lakh for FY20. The company continues to maintain a loan-to-value of 68% on
the housing finance book.

The Company Net worth has increased from %20,720.91 Lakh to %23,153.91 Lakh in FY 2019-20 on
account of 248% jump in PAT to %2,433.26 Lakh during the current financial year.

Liquidity Position and Borrowings

The Company has comfortable liquidity cushion in terms of Cash & bank balances of 1598.73 Lakh and
%364.07 Lakh respectively besides having un-availed bank limits of 20,000 Lakh as at end of FY 2019-20.
The Company has DSCR of 1.62 and Interest Coverage ratio 1.57. The Company is well positioned in
meeting its short term and medium term obligations.

The Company has strengthened its relationships with banks /financial institution and got sanctions of
%39,000 Lakh. As of March 31, 2020, borrowings from Public sector, private sector banks and financial
institutions in term loans (tenure of 7-8 years)/ CC limits were ¥77,431.19 Lakh as against ¥67,637.42
Lakh in FY 2018-19. The Company has raised fresh resources from term loans and other facilities from
banks of ¥ 27,500 Lakh and refinance from National Housing Bank of 211,500 Lakh. During the year
under review, your Company maintained banking relationships with 11 banks. The gearing of Company
as at March 31, 2020 is 3.34 times.

Product Performance

The Company had continued with strategy of going granular and focused on sourcing small ticket size
loans in its vertical, spread over wider geographical area resulting into de-risking the loan portfolio,
better control over delinquencies and better risk spread in the medium to long term. The average yield
on the Home loan portfolio is 14.07%.

Outlook

Low cost housing finance NBFC players focused on low cost housing finance are expected to witness a
CAGR of 8-9% from % 517 billion (Estimated) in FY 2018-19 to ~% 600 billion in FY 2021-22.

(Source: CRISIL)

According to consulting firm FSG, low-income housing finance is expected to grow at 30-40% over the
next five years. Two-thirds of India’s population is below 35 years of age with the average age of a first-
time homebuyer in India is about 37-38 years. Thus, over the long term, structural demand for housing in
India will always remain strong. Overall, HFCs are expected to continue doing well with home loan AUM



vi.

likely to grow at 18-20% per annum, according to CRISIL. The growth will be driven by Housing shortage
in the affordable segment, regulatory facilitation, entry of a large number of HFCs with sharp focus on
the affordable segment, among other factors.

Due to COVID Impact, home loan segment to witness lower credit growth driven by near term shutdown
and a gradual recovery subsequently. According to the CRISIL Research, in base case scenario, has
assumed containment of Covid-19 outbreak by end of June 2020 and return of business-as-usual
scenario by end of September 2020. The negative impact on credit profile of Housing Finance
Companies would be more profound in case the pandemic prevails for extended periods. Home loan
outstanding of HFC to grow at a relatively slower pace of ~6% in fiscal 2021, as compared with ~8% in
fiscal 2020. For 9 months ended December 2019, the growth was ~8 % on year compared to ~12%
during the corresponding period in the previous year. The 3-month moratorium on payment of EMI
announced by RBI on March 27, 2020, will reduce repayment pressure on the borrowers; the self-
employed segment is particularly expected to benefit out of it. Asset quality in home loan segment to
deteriorate by 20-25 bps by March 2021, asset quality in self-employed borrower segment to remain
monitorable. The Profitability would remain largely stable in base case scenario.

However, the Company aims to become most relevant player in its chosen customer segment. Its
product offerings and distribution network will significantly contribute to take the Company to the next
level. The Company is well-equipped to seize opportunities in the housing finance sector.

Risks and Concerns

Being in the lending business, Risk Management forms a vital element of our business. The Company has
a well-defined Risk Management framework, approved by the Board of Directors. It provides the
mechanism for identifying, assessing and mitigating risks.

The company has a Risk Management Committee (RMC) and an Asset Liability Management (ALM) Policy
approved by the Board. The Board has constituted the Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) to assess the risk
arising out of the liquidity gap and interest rate sensitivity.

During the year, the RMC reviewed the risk associated with the business, its root cause and the efficacy
of the measures taken to mitigate the same. ALCO also reviewed the risks arising from the liquidity gap
and interest rate sensitivity and took decisions to mitigate the risk by ensuring adequate liquidity through
the maturity profile of the Company’s assets and liabilities.

Steps to strengthen the risk management
Safe Lending

Credit assessment of a customer’s profile is an important precursor to safe lending. The right selection of
customers ensures better asset quality and higher profitability. To strengthen our customer onboarding
process, the Company has taken initiatives that include:

e Deeply engaging with CICs to access proven data, strengthening customer mapping

e Regular learning and development programmes to impart functional trainings at branch, regional and
national levels

e Make the onboarding process stronger by segregation of duties and stronger maker and checker
approach.

e Introduced legal and technical vetting at regional level

e Implementing a process of dual property visit by technical team and credit team, ensuring the right
selection of assets for financing



Major risks and their mitigation measures:

SI.

No.

Risk

Impact

Mitigation measures

1

Credit risk

The most common risk
faced by any lending
institution is the inability
on the part of the
borrower to repay the
loan.

The delinquencies may result
in monetary losses, higher
NPAs and deterioration of
asset quality and ultimately
capital adequacy.

This is followed by a thorough
assessment of the potential
customers”  soundness  of
business and long-term
viability by analysing cash
flows.

Origination and appraisal

CGHFL has stipulated prudent
lending policies for each of the
business vertical, considering the
risk involved with different
products and customer profiles.
The Company has designed a
robust and dynamic credit
appraisal system to minimise the
probability of default. Its credit
appraisal system conducts
customer meetings (business and
residence) and field investigations,
credit information bureaus checks,
in-house  technical and legal
verification, adequate loan to
value ratio and term cover for
insurance. There is thorough
reference checks of the
borrower’s overall goodwill and
integrity in the market. This is
followed by a thorough business
assessment and long-term viability
by analysing cash flows of the
potential customers.

All loans are fully secured by way
of mortgages and CGHFL has first
and exclusive charge on collateral
properties.

Company has put in place an
inhouse Fraud Control Unit, having
expert  knowledge in fraud
detection and forensic analysis of
documents, as to detect and
eliminate potential frauds being
committed on the Company.

Operational risk
Operational Risk is the risk
of possible losses, arising
due to lack of proper flow
and inadequate controls
over the internal
processes, people,
systems and operations of
the Company.

Operational lapses could lead
to adverse impact on the
sustainability of the business
in the long-term and loss of
profitability.

CGHFL has a state-of-the-art
technology driven process flow
and operational control system
and a responsive customer portal
for enhanced efficiency and
deeper engagement with the
customers. The Company’s
internal control infrastructure is
well-aligned with its underwriting
and collection processes, which
are  managed by a highly




competent and trained team.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risks emanate
from the gaps in financing
activity.

A skewed asset-liability profile
can potentially initiate a
liquidity shortfall and result in
significantly higher costs of
funds.

CGHFL has dedicated treasury
team to manage liquidity and
monitor fund availability and
deployment on daily basis. Reports
are submitted to ALCO members,
and are used to make relevant
liquidity forecasts on quarterly
basis for the next 6 months.
Company’s has exposure to all
long term funds with repayment
tenure of 5-8 vyears and are
sourced from banks and Fl’s.
There is nil exposure to
commercial papers. CGHFL’s is in
strong position to mobilise funds
for its growth having higher capital
adequacy ratio of 40.35%.

Strategic and business risk
It is the risk to earnings
and capital arising from
volatile macro-economic
conditions, sudden
changes in the business
environment or adverse
business decisions.

Lack of timely response to
such unforeseen conditions
can lead to major tremors in
the business. Entry of new
competitors leading to loss of
market share, higher costs of
funding resulting in
contraction of available
spreads, slow-down in certain
customer segments are some
of the potential business risks
faced by the Company.

The CGHFL's strategy, business
and risk teams keep a track of key
economic trends, sector
developments and market
competition, which allows us to

take well-informed and in-time
strategic decisions. CGHFL’s
customised and tailor-made

lending solutions are designed
keeping in mind the needs of
individuals for a faster market
penetration. Business issues which
are of strategic importance are
referred to the Board members,
who are experts with rich
experience in their respective
fields.  Intense  brainstorming
sessions are conducted @ to
evaluate and design the relevant
strategies, which help us in
tackling the business uncertainties
and circumventing business
disruptions.

Interest rate risks

Volatility in interest rates can
have a negative impact on the
borrowing costs of the
Company, decline in interest
income and net interest
margins. This can cause a
mismatch on the Company’s
asset—liability  position and
could lead to lower
profitability and lower returns.

Interest rate movements are
tracked and reviewed by ALCO on
a quarterly basis and the allowing
base lending rate i.e. LTRR is fixed.
Most of our portfolio is built on
floating interest rates. Interest
rates are primarily market driven
and CGHFL's interest risk strategy
is well adept at managing the
changing market dynamics.

Regulatory
and Compliance risk
CGHFL is registered with

Non-compliance of the rules,
regulations and statutes leads
to stringent actions and

CGHFL has a separate compliance
department, headed by a Senior
Personnel. The Company keeps




the National Housing Bank | penalties from the Regulator itself abreast with all recent
as a Housing Finance | or Statutory Authorities. developments and changes in the
Company regulatory framework/ guidelines
to ensure a timely, effective and
proper implementation and
compliance.  CGHFL  diligently
complies with Capital Adequacy
Norms, Fair Practice Code, Asset
Classification, KYC/PMLA
Guidelines, Provisioning Normes,
Corporate Governance framework,
Timely Reporting with
NHB/RBI/SEBI /Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, etc. among
others to ensure a comprehensive
Compliance framework. This is
continuously reviewed and
monitored by a robust Internal
Audit and control framework.

Information Technology Data integrity and physical To mitigate risks, the Company
risk (including Cyber safeguarding of assets. uses  back up  procedures,
Security) Risks could primarily arise restricted access to applications
Company deploys | from the unavailability of and other security restrictions.
Information  Technology | systems and / or loss or Systems are upgraded regularly
systems including ERP, | manipulation of information with the latest security standards.
loan management | or Information data security. For critical applications, security
applications, Data policies and procedures are
Historian and  Mobile updated on a periodic basis and
Solutions to support its users are educated on adherence
business processes, to the policies so as to eliminate
communications and data leakages.

customer details and loan

records.

vii.

viii.

Internal control systems and their adequacy

Company has in place adequate internal control systems commensurate with the size and nature of its
operations. Internal control systems comprising of policies and procedures and well defined risk and
control matrix are designed to ensure orderly and efficient conduct of business operations, safeguard
company’s assets, prevention and detection of errors and frauds, ensure strict compliance with
applicable laws and assure reliability of financial statements and financial reporting.

An extensive program of internal audits, and regular reviews by the Audit Committee is carried out to
ensure compliance with the best practices. The efficacy of internal control systems is tested periodically
by Internal Auditors and internal control over financial reporting is tested and certified by Statutory
Auditors.

Human Resource Development
We at CGHFL value our relationship with all our employees and ensure that each of our team members

feel connected with us and share the broader vision of making a positive social impact by bridging the
credit gap.



Our people’s team, guided by the top management, relentlessly undertakes various people-centric
activities to keep all our employees engaged and provide them with suitable opportunities.

The year 2019-20 has witnessed many changes in the global economy and to adapt to the changing
environment the Company has made rigorous efforts. The Company has also ensured that the
employees’ skills are uplifted so that employees can handle challenges while staying abreast with the
functional domain knowledge of the Non-Banking Financial Services Industry. We strongly believe that
the employees would able to contribute more only when there is a healthy work life balance. We
understand and value the efforts of our employees, hence to engage their families, we at CGHFL had
invited the employee families to our offices which provided us with an opportunity to engage better with
our employees & also helped us to build a strong relationship with our employees. We believe that
growth of the Company is not only a contribution made by its employee alone, but a joint effort made by
their family as well. We have taken initiative to thanks our employee’s families for contributing towards
the growth of the Company. Employee recognition has always been an essential element for the
Company in motivating, retaining and fully engaging the employees which leads to achieving the
organizational goals and in turns helps to create a positive environment at workplace. The Company has
quarterly as well as yearly rewards for exceptional performers and our performance appraisal systems
have been designed to recognize and reward exceptional performers. There are contests for employees
to boost up their performance with rewarding them. Employees who have completed 5 year & 10 years
have been recognized for their loyalty in their services.

It also focuses on providing opportunities to each employee to grow and utilise their complete potential.
Some key focus areas in 2019-20 were:

Recruitment: There is nothing as powerful as the unanimous voice of a brand which lies in the collective
strength of its employees, who at CGHFL work as the brand ambassadors. CGHFL has 258 employees
with a large spread of their own social and professional network, further growing the CGHFL network of
influence. With the employees trust in the brand, we are able to attract and retain talent.

The most important detail we look at is the quality-of-hire. A referred candidate is a preferred candidate
because of their well-proven performance track record. A successful referral assures an employee about
their prospects with the future company they are applying for, and not only do they tend to stay longer
after the referral, but they are more engaged as well. It's the most cost-effective method of hiring a
strong candidate. Not to forget that referral systems save a lot of time in on — boarding formalities.

Training and Development:

Employees decide the narrative of a brand. The ones running our business goals are the most valuable
asset to our organization. In the Financial year 2020, we continually invested in continuous learning and
competency development for our human capital. Training being an ongoing process at CGHFL, our
training team has been instrumental in creating a culture of learning throughout the year. We have
incessantly invested in developing the talent onboard, so that they enhance functional and behavioural
competency. We aim to develop a disciplined constructive environment in which all employees
understand their responsibilities to undertake higher roles in the growth journey of CGHFL. During the
Financial Year 2019-20, we have engaged 4196 participants with 8624 manhours spend in 569 training
sessions through internal and external sources.

We are working on various aspects of the training sessions emphasizing on a blend of on job training
which is a highly scalable platform, exposing our employees to upgrade their technical, regional and
professional skills. We ensure that the employees are educated on our organization’s internal policies
and external regulations at regular intervals. The regional policies pertaining to specific region is being
lectured by our regional leaders, which is further preached to our business and frontline team. The key
focus areas this year was to strengthen the knowledge base of our frontline business and credit team
and promote sharing of ideal practices in the region. This was achieved through interactive classroom



based sessions conducted in each region for our branch manager and above employees. These sessions
covered functional topics like product, fraud control, legal and technical valuations through interactive
formats of role plays and quizzes. It was also crucial to focus on our credit executives and front line sales
employees for whom customized modules were developed this year. These sessions were conducted
through interactive formats like role play & quizzes and covered functional topics like product, fraud
control, legal & technical valuations. The goal of this learning is to bring employees to a classroom for
collaboration and networking, thereby offering thoroughly engaged training session

The training programs are synchronised in a way to strengthen the skillset of employees. We have
collaboration with few trainers. The competency development of our employees continues to be a key
area of strategic focus for us. Several training have been planned and organised by various external
agencies, offering certification programs on Compliance, Law, AML, KYC, POSH and other elements
related to our industry practises.

Being in an era of digitalization and e-learning, we are looking forward to enhance our technology led
training efforts in multiple areas. We plan to take mobile platform to make learning content available to
employees to access anywhere, from their mobile devices at any time convenient to them. Through the
mobile app our learning program would be accessible across geographies, which would lead to enhanced
employees’ participation in learning. The objective of these app-based modules is to enhance their
knowledge on company’s product & policies so that they were well equipped while dealing with
customers.

Employee Engagement Initiatives:

CGHFL believes that Engagement relates to the level of an employee’s commitment and connection with
the organization. Employee engagement has emerged as a critical drive of business success in today’s
competitive marketplace. High level of engagement promotes retention of talent, foster customer loyalty
and improves organizational performance. Our focus lies in nurturing our talent and recognizing their
efforts contributing towards meeting the organizational goal. Employees are giving opportunities to take
up challenging role, this helps us to keep employees engaged & reduces boredom.

We have also engaged employees in cultural and festive activities. In the Financial Year 2019-20, we
witnessed an array of engagement activities on the occasions like Diwali, Independence Day, Navratri,
Holi, World Food Day, Christmas Celebration and Women’s Day. Navratri week was marked with the
Garba dance across the branches and celebrating each day with the “Color of the Day”. To salute the
efforts of each woman working with CGHFL we celebrated International Women’s day across the
branches where female staff were gifted a personalized diary to pen down their thoughts. To inculcate
the spirit of Sharing and Caring within co-workers, CGHFL celebrated World’s Food day where Potluck
was organized & employees were asked to get homemade food & share with the fellow colleagues. This
helped them to connect more with their colleagues. Diwali was witnessed with arrays of fun filled games
which inculcated team spirit amongst all.

Fine balance between People & Technology:

While the advancement in HR technology is accelerating, the ongoing pace of progress of these
technologies is transforming how people carry out their work, and how HR supports their employees.
Technology makes it easier to gather and break down data on employees to get an overall picture. A
collaboration between people and technology has becomes an essence in today’s world and it becomes
important at building a collaborative workforce by bringing people and technology in one frame.
Collaboration has always been known that it can make things work more effectively. We at CGHFL with
the help of our inhouse technology team have evolved our HR process which, has reduced our manual
intervention and has automated our routine administrative tasks. This has helped us to focus on strategic
aspects of HR functions. In order to facilitate the process, we adopted tools like self-service employee
portals, onboarding, exits, performance reviews and an interface is created for prospective candidates to



complete their process during the offer stage. With the help of technology our data management is
simplified, and the data is available with a click of a button. The technology has enabled us to gather,
collect, and deliver information, as well as communicate with employees more easily and efficiently.

Gender equality among organization:

In today’s dynamic business environment, achieving gender equality is the factor for competitiveness and
growth of any organization. To create an inclusive and dynamic economy, we ensure that everyone
receives an equal opportunity to succeed. Gender equality in the workplace refer to a variety of culture,
practices and attitude that promotes or subvert attempts to create a gender equal workplace. We at
CGHFL ensures that equal opportunity is given to all employees without gender discrimination. It also
includes providing equal chances of promotion, pay-rises, and inclusion in decision making process. We
also prioritized on work life balance, strict and effective policies are created against harassment at
workplace. An open-minded culture is created which gives the employees an opportunity to exchange
ideas & nurture their career in the organization which leads to long term success for the organization as
well as the employee’s.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To The Members of Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Capri Global Housing Finance Limited (the
“"Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020, and the Statement of Profit
and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of

Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31% March 2020, and its profit, total
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our respensibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the financial statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAl’'s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 34 of the financial statements, which describes that the extent to which
the Covid-19 Pandemic will impact the Company’s results wiil depend on future developments, which
are highly uncertain.

Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

s The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis and Directors
Report (the “Reports™), but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon. The Reports are expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors’
report.
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« Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

« In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

» If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safequarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resuiting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.
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» Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management,

« Conclude on the approptiateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) ptanning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
retated safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss induding Other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31% March 2020 from
ﬁ being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
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f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in "Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197
of the Act.

h} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
Note 46 to its financial statements as at 31 March 2020;
i, The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts as at
year-end for which there were any material foreseeable losses; and
iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Praotection Fund by the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order") issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143({11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No,117366W/W-100018)

o

T

G. K. Subramaniam
Partner
{Membership No. 109839)

Mumbai: 9" May 2020
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Report on Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

ANNEXURE “"A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in paragrapbh 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Capri Global Housing Finance
Limited (the “*Company”) as of 31% March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal controt stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the
"Guidance Note”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the

accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Act,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controis over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide.
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
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transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
315t March 2020, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

—

AR
G. Kﬁ;am
Partner

(Membership No. 109839)
Mumbai: 9" May 2020
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

(i) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has maintained
proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed
assets.

{b) The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance
with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides for physical
verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the information and
explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us,
there are no immovable properties, included in property, plant and equipment of the
Company and accordingly, the requirement under paragraph 3(i){c) of the Order is not
applicable.

(i) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3(ii) of the Order is not
applicable.

(iii) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act.

(iv} The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees under the
provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act and hence reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order
is not applicable.

(v} To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any public deposit during the year and no order in this respect has
been passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or the Reserve Bank
of India or any Court or any other Tribunals.

{vi) To the best our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of
the Act, in respect of the services rendered by the Company.

(vii) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, in
respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including
Provident Fund, Empioyees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax and cess
to the appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax and cess as at 31% March 2020 for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.
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(c) Details of dues of Income-tax as on 31% March 2020 on account of disputes are given below:-

Forum where Period to
Name of . ) which the Amount
Statute Nature of Dues Dlsput_e is Amount (Rs.)
Pending
Relates

Income Tax | Regular Assessment | Assessing

Act, 1961 | ufs 143(3) of the Act | officer AY 2008-09 | 1,95,454

Income Tax | Interest ufs 220(2) of | Assessing

Act, 1961 the Act officer AY 2010-11 16,875

There are no dues of Provident Fund, Employees’ state insurance, and Goods and Service
Tax as on 31% March 2020 on account of disputes,

(viii} To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

(ix)

()

(xi)

Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings te banks and government.
The Company has not taken any loan from financial institutions. The Company has not issued
any debentures.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
money raised by way of the term loans have been applied by the Company during the year for
the purposes for which they were raised other than temporary deployment pending application
of proceeds. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer/ further public
offer including debt instruments.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanation given to us, no
fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has
been noticed or reported during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
paid/provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

(xi) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not

applicable.

{xiii) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

Company is in compliance with Section 188 and 177 of the Act, where applicable, for all
transactions with the related parties and the detzils of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

{xiv) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of

shares or fully or partly convertibie debentures and hence reporting under clause 3(xiv) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xv) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us,
during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors
or persons connected with them and hence provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chaitered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

G. . Ssubramaniam
Partner
(Membership No. 109839)

Mumbai, 9" May, 2020



GAPR] GLORAL HOUSING FINANCE MIMITED.
BALANCE SHEET A5 AT MARCH 31, 2020

(Amgunt in B5)
Particulars e | asatMarch 31, 2020 | AsaeMarcti31, 2019
ASSETS
{17 [Financial assets
{a) Lash and cash equivalents 3 159,873,521 1,236,080,945
1)) Bank Balances other than (3] above 4 16,406,915 77,996,078
fe) Trade Receivaties 5 1,369,679 42,876,480
{d} Laans ] 8,776,124,255 7.764,793.851
{e} Inyesiments 7 1,120,899,432 -
[1)] Other linancial assets 8 6,876, 108 5,652,361
Total Financjgl Asxsets 10,101 ,549,908 9,118,399,715
{2)  |Wom-Financial assets
fa) Currant Tax Assets (Net) 9 5,520,157 5,563,447
1] Deferrad 1ax assets (Net) il 31,719.032 42 064,553
{c) Invesiment orocerties 11 8522838 10,973,581
{d) Proparty, plant and equipment 12 14,509,023 22,670,597
{e} Other i ible assets 9,181,162 1,925,013
{1} Inlagibie pssels under devefopmen 1,667,700 5A8.500
{g) Othar ngn-financial assets 13 5574 865 5531,764
Total Non-Financial Assets 77,400,777 90421 655 |
Total Assets 10,176 950 685 9,218,421,370
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
LIABILITIES
{1 Financial Liabilities
(a) Fayables
Trade Payahles 14
{i} total autstanding dues of micro enterprises and smail enterprises -
{i) tota! qutstanding ¢ues of creditors ather than micro enterprises and small 38,122,707 41,310,567
enterprises
(b Borrovangs (Qther than Debt Securities) 15 7.743,119,754 6,763,742, 756
[{4] Other financea! liabiities 16 33,504 641 206,959,771
Total Financial Liabilities 7,814,247,172 7092013094
{2} Hon-Financial Liabilities
{a) Current Tax Latshties {Net) 17 166,137 5472849
{b} Prov 15005 18 13,066 745 9,256 356 |
1 Qiher non-fingncial liabilities 19 35651357 39,908 043
Total Mon-Financial Liabilities 408,884,240 54,717,258 }
Total liabilities 7863631412 7,146,730,352
[3} EQULTY
{a) Equity 20 6id7,142,800 607,142,800
(b} Cher aguity 21 1,708,176,473 1,464,948,216
Total equity 2,215,319,373 2,072,091,016

|Total equity and liabilities

| 10,178,950,685 |:

9.318.921,370

The accompanying noltes are 3n integral part of the Financial Statemenls.

In terms of pur report attached

For Dedpitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Acrauntants

(Firm Redistration No.117366W/W-100018%
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OBAL H IN N

TATEMENT L THE YEAR ENDED MA

[Amount in Rs.)

¥ear ended March

Year ended March 31,

_ _ Particulars Note 31,2020 2019 ...
Revenue from Operations
() Interest Income 22 1,264,839,930 678 806,399
{ii) Fees Income 23 21,442,712 37,589,721
i} Net Gain on fair value changas 24 28,646,705 21,667 424
{iv] Cther operating income 25 63,736,909 150,667,732
{n Total Ravenue from Operations 1,378,666,316 888,731,277
{11} Other Income 26 16,029,097 226,717
(Iil)  |Total Income (I+I1I} 1,394,695,413 838,957,993
Expenses
{D Finance costs " 27 668,294,731 372,114,138
i) Irmpairment an financial instruments 28 45,106,136 24,588 468
(i) Net Loss on fair vaiue changes 25 - -
{iv} Employee benefit expense 30 212,247,503 200,964,349
{v) Depreciation and amortisation expense 23,114,891 17,637,511
{wi) QOther expenses 3t 134,290,836 180,945,329
tiv) |Total exp - 1,083,054,087 796,249,795
(V) Profit/{Loss) before Tax ( III - IV) 311,541,326 52,708,198
Tax expense
- Current tax 79,449,327 45,893,217
- Defarred tax {10,151 087) {23,008,5720)
" - Income Tax Pertaining to earlier year (983,097} -
{vl) |Totaitax expense 68,315,143 22,884,247
(VU] |net profit 7 {Loss) After Tax { V - V1) 243,326,183 69,823,551
(VIII) |other comprehensive income 32
(i) items that witl not be reclassified to profit ar loss
Pemeasurement of defined benefit plans {138,160) (362,983)
{ii) Income tax relating to iterns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 40,232 100,982
Other Comprehensive {ncome (97,928) (262,001)
{1X) Total comprehensive incame { VII + VIII) 243,228,255 69,561,950
{X) Earnings per equity share
Basic (%) i 4.01 1.68
Dilutad () i 401 1.88

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins B Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

{Firm Registration No. 117366W/W-100018}
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G. K. Subramaniam
Partner
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Managing Director
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CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

£ash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2020

Amgunt in Bg.
Year ended March 11, [ vear énded March 31,
Particulars 2020 2019
op ing activities
Profit betore tax fiom continuing aperauons 311,641,326 92,708,198
Pralit before tax 311541326 92,708,188 |
Adjustments to reconcife profit befors tax to net cash fows:
Duepresigtion & amonisabon 23,114,881 17,6375 1
{Impairment on financial instruments 15 106,116 24,508,468
et Gawn on financial asser demgnated at FYPL {10,222,454] -
Share Based Payments to employees (2,777,783)|
Intarest gn Leased A3sels 1,224,486 -
{Profit}fLoss On Sale O Fixed Assets 148,819 -
{operating Profit before warking capitat changes and adjustments for Interest received, Interesk
ip&d and Dividend received 371,013,194 132,156,394
Working capital changss
Loans 1,055,373, 255 5,409,689.225
Trage receivables 41,283,056 (39,516,296}
(Cther Mon-financial assels (41,1013 5812783
Trade pavables 3,187,790 24,002 867
(Chher inancial liabiliby [265,414.210} (160,291,729
Provisiong 2,608.930 4,056.678
Cash Mlows used in operating activities (909,111,176) (5423,250,457F)
Tnome tae paid 62,495,812 ) {23.713,700)
Net cash flows fram/{used in} operating activities (971,60 B {5,446,902,158]
}Invesling activities
Purchase of fixed and mtangitle assels (5,145,715 (17,130,022
Procaeds Irom sale of property and eqwipment 100,003 B44,004
Intangible Assets Under Cevelopment u,am,mi} {585,600}
Proceeds from sale of lavestment Propilies 2,150 B43 -
Proceeds fram Maturity of Fived Deposits 41,589,163 19.008.705
Purchase al investment {1.110.676,977) -1
Net cash Mows from/{used in) investing activities 1,073,058, 793} 2.134&
{Fitancing activities
lncrease i Share Capital - 138055220
Paytments for the principad portion of the lease liablity 9,690,166
P ts (or the interest partion af the lease laili (1,224,386}
Iacrease in Soouiitizs Prémium 1] 761,904.639
Barrawings other Ihan debt securities issued 973 576,938 5677395502
Net cash flows fram financing activitles 968,862,547 6,577,395,381

\Het increasef (decrense] v cash and cash equivalents

{1,076, 207 ,424%

1,232,547,220 |

Cash and cash ecuivalents at 15t Apal 2019

1.236.080.945

3521675 }

ash and cash equivalents at 31st March 2020 159,073,521 1,236,080,935
Components of cash 2ng cash squivalents
Cash on hand 209,936 730,794
Batances with banks
in cunent accounts 159,163,585 565,350,151
[ Depasit accounts with ghginal maturity of 3 months of less - 670,000,000
Yatal cash and cash_gliuareuls lSSg?!é!l 1.236!080!945
1. Operational cash flows from interest and dividends
Tnnerast paid 668,196,089 372,359,058
Interest received 1,254,268,192 625,298,412

Dividend received

2. Cach Mows atising an accoLnt of taxes an Income are not specifically bifurcated with respect ta investing & fnancing ackivities.
3. Previous Years figutes have been regrouped, wherever necessary to confirm to current year's classification,

4, Figuras in brackets represent outflows.
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CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A. EDUITY SHARE CAPITAL

{Amecunt in 85

as at April 01, 2018

Changes in eguity
share capityl during
the year 2018-10

A5 at March 31,

Changes in equity
share capital during
the yaar 2013-10

As at March 31, 2020

169,042 604 238,095,200 607,142 800 - 607,142 800
£, OTHER EQUITY
{ A ab in s,
Other Total
Reserves and Surplus Comprehensive
Income
Statutory Reseive
l . Employee Benefit
. . N , Employee Share under Section 29C of _—
Securities Premium | Retained Earnings Option Qutstanding Jthe National Housing g:g?\ses (Gratuity
Bank Act, 1987
Balance as at april 1, 2016 380,952 321 224,374,696 2‘7?7.;53 28,100,000 54,612 336,259,412 |
Received during the yegr 761,904 640 69,873,951 14,000,000 (262,001) B45.466,590
[Utised during the year (14,000,000} 12,.777,783] 16,777,763)
Balance as at april 1, 2019 1,142,856,961 260,198,647 - 42,100,000 {207,389) 1,464 948,218
Received during the year 243,326,183 - 13,000,000 (97.528) 252 228,255
Utilised during the year (49,000,000)| (49,000,000}
Balance as at March 31, 2020 1,142 B56,961 474,524,830 - 01,145,000 [2056,317) 1,708,176473

n terms of our report attached

For Delgitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

{Firm Registration Ho. 117 IG6W/W-100018)

G. K. Subram.
partner
[Membership No. 109833)
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Capri Global Housing Finance Limited
Notes forming part of Financial Statements

1. Corporate Information

Capri Global Housing Finance Limited {the Company} having principal place of business at Registered
office, 502, Tower A, Peninsula Business Park, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400013 is
engaged in the business of providing loans primarily to customers for purchase / construction / repair and
renovation of residential property. The Company holds registration certificate No. 07.0139.16 with
National Housing Bank under section 29A of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 dated 18th July 2016

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 were authorised for issue in accordance with
a resolution of the board of directors on May 9, 2020.

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards {Ind AS) notified under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended
from time to time). The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the application of fair value measurements required or allowed by relevant Accounting
Standards. Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise
stated.

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amaounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the
disclosed amount of contingent liabilities. Areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions are significant to the Company are discussed in Note 2.15- Significant
accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR} and all values are rounded to the nearest
Rupee, except when otherwise indicated.

2.2. Presentation of financial statement
The financial statements of the Company are presented as per Schedule |1t {Division |11} of the Companies
Act, 2013, as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). Financial assets and financial liabilities
are generally reported on a gross basis except when, there is an unconditional legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event and the parties intend to settle
on a net basis in the following circumstances:

i.  The normal course of business

ii. The event of default

iii. The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/or its counterparties

" b~



2.3, Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards {Ind
AS) an the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period as explained in the accounting policies below and the relevant provisions
of the Act.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued accounting standard is
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy
hitherto in use.

2.4 Financial instruments

{i} Classification of financial instruments

The Company classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories:
1. Financial assets to be measured at amortised cost
2. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
3. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through profit or loss account

The classification depends on the contractual terms of the financial assets’ cash flows and the Comipany’s
business model for managing financial assets which are explained below:

Business model assessment
The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of
financial assets to achieve its business objective.

The Company's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level

of aggregated portfolios and is based on observahle factors such as:

» How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model
are evaluated and repeorted to the entity's key management personnel

» The risks that affect the performance of the business model {and the financial assets held within that
business model) and the way those risks are managed

» How managers of the business are compensated {for example, whether the compensation is based on
the fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected)

» The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Company’s
assessment. The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking
'‘worst case’ or 'stress case’ scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in
a way that is different from the Company's original expectations, the Company does not change the
classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business model but incorporates such
information when assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.

The Solely Payments of Principal and interest (SPPI) test
As a second step of its classification process the Company assesses the contractual terms of financial assets
to identify whether they meet the SPPI test.
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‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition
and may change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal or
amortisation of the premium/discount).

In making this assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with
a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit
risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement,
Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic
lending arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value through profit or
foss

The Company classifies its financial liabilities at amortised costs unless it has designated liabilities at fair

value through the prefit and loss account or is required to measure liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss such as derivative liabilities.

{ii} Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Debt instruments
These financial assets comprise bank balances, receivables, investments and other financial assets.

Debt instruments are measured at amortised cost where they have:
a) contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that represent sclely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding; and
b) are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by holding to collect contractual
cash flows,

These debt instruments are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs
and subsequently measured at amortised cost.

{iii} Financiat assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments
Investments in debt instruments are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income where
they have:
a) contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that represent solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding; and
b) are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets.

These debt instruments are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs
and subsequently measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are included
in other comprehensive income within a separate component of equity. Impairment losses or reversals,
interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in Profit and Loss. Upecn disposal,
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the cumulative gain or [oss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from
equity to the statement of profit and loss.

Equity instruments

Investment in equity instruments that are neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by the Company in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 ‘Business Combination” applies,
are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, where an irrevocable election has been
made by management and when such instruments meet the definition of definition of Equity under Ind
AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation. Such classification is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. As at reporting date, there are no equity instruments measured at FYTOCI.

Amounts presented in other comprehensive income are not subsequently transferred to profit or loss,
Dividends on such investments are recognised in Profit or Loss.

{iv) ltems at fair value through profit or loss {FVTPL)

Items at fair value through profit or loss comprise:

+ Investments (including equity shares) held for trading;

+ ltems specifically designated as FVTPL on initial recognition; and

» debt instruments with contractual terms that do not represent solely payments of principal and interest.

Financial instruments held at FYTPL are initially recognised at fair value, with transaction costs recognised
in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value and any
gains or losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as they arise.

Financial instruments held for trading

A financial instrument is classified as held for trading if it is acquired or incurred principally for selling or
repurchasing in the near term, or forms part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are managed
together and for which there is evidence of short-term profit taking, or it is a derivative not in a qualifying
hedge relationship.

Trading derivatives and trading securities are classified as held for trading and recognised at fair value.
No Trading derivatives were undertaken until the year ended March 31, 2020.

Finoncial instruments designoted as measured at FVTPL

Upon initial recognition, financial instruments may be designated FVTPL. A financial asset may only be
designated at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition
inconsistencies (i.e. eliminates an accounting mismatch} that would otherwise arise from measuring
financial assets or liabilities on a different basis.

A financial liability may be designated at FVTPL if it eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting

mismatch or:
« if a host contract contains one or imore embedded derivatives; or
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« if financial assets and liabilities are both managed, and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis
in accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy.

Where a financial liability is designated at FVTPE, the movement in fair value attributable to changes in
the Company’s own credit quality is calculated by determining the changes in credit spreads above
observable market interest rates and is presented separately in other comprehensive income. As at the
reporting date, the Company has not designated any financial instruments as measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

{v) Debt securities and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued, and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on issue
funds, and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

{vi) Reclassification

If the business model under which the Company holds financial assets changes, the financial assets
affected are reclassified. The classification and measurement requirements related to the new category
apply prospectively from the first day of the first reporting period following the change in business model
that result in reclassifying the Company's financial assets. Changes in contractual cash flows are considered
under the accounting policy on Modification and derecognition of financial assets described below.

{vii} Recognition and Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

Recognition:

a) Loans and Advances are initially recognised when the Financial Instruments are transferred to the
customers.

b} Investments are initially recognised on the settlement date.

¢} Debt securities, deposits and borrowings are initially recognised when funds reach the Company.

d) Other Financial assets and liabilities are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes regular way
trades: purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
generally established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions:

The Company derecognises a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms and conditions
have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the difference
recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been
recorded. The newly recognised loans are classified as Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes, unless the
new |oan is deemed to be Purchased or Originated as Credit Impaired (POCI).

(
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If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification does not
result in derecognition, Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR, the Company
records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded.

Derecognition of financial gssets other thon due to substantial modification
a) Financial assets:
A financial asset {(or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired. The
Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer
qualifies for derecognition.
The Company has transferred the financial asset if, the Company has transferred its contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the financial asset
A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:

i The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

ii. The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of

the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to
sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and
without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

When the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and has
retained control of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the Company’s
continuing involvement, in which case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that refiects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained.

b} Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is
recognised in Profit or Loss.

{viii) lmpairment of financial assets

Qverview of the ECL principles

The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, other debt financial assets not
held at FVTPL, together with financial guarantee contracts, in this section all referred to as “financial
instruments. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under Ind AS 109.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime
expected credit loss), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which
case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit loss.
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Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is the portion of Lifetime ECL that represent the ECLs that
result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the
reporting date.

Both Lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated on either an individual basis or a collective basis.
The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of
whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by
considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument.
The Company does the assessment of significant increase in credit risk at a borrower level. if a borrower
has various facilities having different past due status, then the highest days past due {DPD} is considered
to be applicable for all the facilities of that borrower.

Based on the above, the Company categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 as described
below:

Stage 1l

All exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or that
has low credit risk at the reporting date and that are not credit impaired upon origination are classified
under this stage. The Company classifies all standard advances and advances up to 0-29 days default under
this category. Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has improved, and the loan has
been reclassified from Stage 2.

Stage 2

All exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are not
credit impaired are classified under this stage. Financial assets past due for 30-89 days are classified under
this stage. Stage 2 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has improved, and the loan has been
reclassified from Stage 3.

Stage 3 :

All exposures assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred are classified in this stage. For exposures that
have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised and interest revenue is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost (net of provision) rather than the gross carrying amount.
90 days Past Due is considered as default for classifying a financial instrument as credit impaired. If an
event (for eg. any natural calamity) warrants a provision higher than as mandated under ECL
methodology, the Company may classify the financial asset in Stage 3 accordingly.

Credit-impaired financial assets:

At each reporting date, the company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
financial assets carried at FVTOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
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a) Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

b} A breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

c) The restructuring of a loan or advance by the company on terms that the company would not consider
otherwise;

d) It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
e) The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

ECL on Debt instruments measured at fair value through OCI

The ECLs for debt instruments measured at FYTOC! do not reduce the carrying amount of these financial
assets in the balance sheet, which remains at fair value. Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that
would arise if the assets were measured at amortised cost is recognised in OCI as an accumulated
impairment amount, with a corresponding charge to profit or loss. The accumulated loss recognised in
OCl is recycled to the statement of Profit and Loss upon derecognition of the assets.

The mechanics of ECL:

The Company calculates ECLs based on probability-weighted scenarios to measure the expected cash
shortfalls, discounted at an approximation 1o the EIR. A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash
flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company
expects to receive.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

Probability of Default (PD) - The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a
given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility
has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio.

Exposure at Default (EAD) - The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure including interest
accrued thereon at a future default date and also including the undrawn commitments.

Loss Given Default (LGD] - The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a
default occurs at a given time, It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and
those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It is usually
expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

Forward looking information

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments
occurring in the economy and market it operates in, On a periodic basis, the Company analyses if there is
any relationship between key economic trends like GDP, unemployment rates, benchmark rates set by
the Reserve Bank of India, inflation etc. with the estimate of PD, LGD determined by the Company based
on its internal data. While the internal estimates of PD, LGD rates by the Company may not be always
reftective of such relationships, temporary overlays, if any, are embedded in the methodology to reflect
such macro-economic trends reasonably.

§
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Collatercl! Valuation

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible. The
collateral comes in various forms, such as the underlying asset financed, cash, securities, letters of
credit/guarantees, etc. However, the fair value of collateral affects the calculation of ECLs. Te the extent
possible, the Company uses active market data for valuing financial assets held as collateral. Other
financial assets which do not have readily determinable market values are valued using models.

Collateral repossessed

In its normal course of business, the Company does not physically repossess properties or other assets in
its retail portfolio, but engages its employees to recover funds, to settle outstanding debt. Any surplus
funds are returned to the customers/obligors. As a result of this practice, assets under legal repossession
processes are not recorded on the balance sheet.

{ix) Write-offs

The Company reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the Company has no reasonable
expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally the case
when the Company determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subjected to write-offs. Any subsequent recoveries
against such loans are credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(x} Determination of fair value
On initial recognition, all the financial instruments are measured at fair value. For subsequent
measurement, the Company measures certain categories of financial instruments {as explained in note.
at fair value on each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumgption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

i. in the principal market for the asset or liability, or

il. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
‘
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.
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In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a
hierarchy of valuation technigues, as summarised below:

Level 1 financial instruments - Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices
from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement
date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards
to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable
price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 financial instruments - Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are
derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the
instrument’s life. Such inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted
prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and observable inputs other than quoted prices such
as interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads. In addition, adjustments may be
required for the condition or location of the asset or the extent to which it relates to items that are
comparable to the valued instrument. However, if such adjustments are based on unobservable inputs
which are significant to the entire measurement, the Company will classify the instruments as Level 3.

Level 3 financial instruments - Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the
rmeasurement as whole.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Difference between transaction price and fair value at initial recognition

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the transaction price
(i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received} unless the fair value of that instrument is
evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions in the same instrument {i.e.
without modification or repackaging) or based on a valuation technique whose variables include anly data
from observable markets. When such evidence exists, the Company recognises the difference between
the transaction price and the fair value in profit or loss on initial recognition {i.e. on day one).

When the transaction price of the instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the fair value
is based on a valuation technigue using only inputs observable in market transactions, the Company
recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair value in net gain on fair value changes.
In those cases where fair value is based on models for which some of the inputs are not observable, the
difference between the transaction price and the fair value is not recognised at the initial recognition
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2.5 Revenue from operations

(i) Interest Income
interest income is recognised by applying (EIR) to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than
credit-impaired assets and financial assets classified as measured at FVTPL, taking into account the
amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate. interest income is recognised on non-performing
assets at net of ECL.

The EIR is computed
a. As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset
b. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument {for example, prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) in estimating the cash flows
¢. Including all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognised tn interest income with
the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets.

(ii} Dividend [ncome
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the payment is established.

{iii) Fees & Commission Income

Fees and commissions are recognised when the Company satisfies the performance obligation, at fair
value of the consideration received or receivable.

(iv) Net gain on Fair value changes

Any differences between the fair values of financial assets classified as FVTPL held by the Company on the
balance sheet date is recognised as an unrealised gain / loss. In cases there is a net gain in the aggregate,
the same is recognised in “Net gains on fair value changes” under Revenue from operations and if there
is a net loss the same is disclosed as “Net loss on fair value changes” under Expenses in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Similarly, any realised gain or loss on sale of financial instruments measured at FVTPL and debt
instruments measured at FVOCI is recognised in net gain / 1oss on fair value changes.

However, Net gain / loss on derecognition of financial instruments classified as amortised cost is
presented separately under the respective head in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(V) Loan Processing Fees

Loan processing fees on loans is collected towards processing of loan, this is amortised on EIR basis over
the contractual life of the loan.
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2.6 Expenses

(i) Finance costs

Finance costs on borrowings is paid towards availing of loan, is amortised on EIR basis over the contractual
life of loan.

The EIR in case of a financial liability is computed
a. As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of
the financial liability to the gross carrying amount of the amortised cost of a financial liability.
b. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating the cash flows
¢. Including all fees paid between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognised in interest expense with
the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the liability.

Interest expense includes issue costs that are initially recognized as part of the carrying value of the
financial liability and amortized over the expected life using the effective interest method. These include
fees and commissions payable to advisers and other expenses such as external legal costs, Rating Fee etc,
provided these are incremental costs that are directly related to the issue of a financial liability.

{ii) Retirement and other employee benefits

Short term employee benefit

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-
term employee benefits. These benefits include short term compensated absences such as paid annual
leave. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for
the services rendered by employees is recognised as an expense during the period. Benefits such as
salaries and wages, etc. and the expected cost of the bonus/ex-gratia are recognised in the period in which
the employee renders the related service.

Post-ermployment employee benefits

a) Defined contribution schemes

All the eligible employees of the Company who have opted to receive benefits under the Provident Fund
and Employees State Insurance scheme, defined contribution plans in which both the employee and the
Company contribute monthly at a stipulated rate. The Company has no liability for future benefits other
than its annual contribution and recognises such contributions as an expense in the period in which
employee renders the related service, If the contribution pavable to the scheme for service received
before the Balance Sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is
recognised as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid
exceeds the contribution due for services received before the Balance Sheet date, then excess is
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recognised as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future
payment or a cash refund.

b} Defined Benefit schemes

The Company provides for the gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering all employees. The plan
provides for lump sum payments to employees upon death while in employment or on separation from
employment after serving for the stipulated years mentioned under ‘The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,
The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial
valuation, carried out by an independent actuary at each Balance Sheet date, using the Projected Unit
Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise 1o an additional unit of employee
benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates
used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan are based on the
market yields on Government Securities as at the Balance Sheet date.

Net interest recognized in profit or loss is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the
defined benefit obligation to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The actual return on the plan assets
above or below the discount rate is recognized as part of re-measurement of net defined liability or asset
through other comprehensive income. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that
may differ from actual developments in the future, These include the determination of the discount rate,
attrition rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation
and its long-term nature, these liabilities are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The Company fully contributes all ascertained liabilities to The Trustees — “Money Matters Securities
Private Limited Empioyee Group Gratuity Assurance Scheme”. Trustees administer contributions made to
the trust and contributions are invested in a scheme of insurance with the IRDA approved Insurance
Companies.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets {excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the
balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OClin the period in which
they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Other long-term employee benefits

Company’s liabilities towards compensated absences to employees are accrued on the basis of valuations,
as at the Balance Sheet date, carried out by an independent actuary using Projected Unit Credit Method.
Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments and the effects of changes in actuarial
assumptions and are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company presents the Provision for compensated absences under provisions in the Balance Sheet.
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(iii} Leases Rent

The Company leases most of its office facilities under operating lease agreements that are renewable on
a periodic basis at the option of the lessor and the lessee. The lease agreements contain rent free periods
and rent escalation clauses.

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease at the inception of the contract, A contract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset, the company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified
asset, (ii) the company has substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset through
the period of the lease, and {iii} the company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a ROU asset and a corresponding
lease liability for all lease arrangements under which it is a fessee, except for short-term leases and low
value leases. ROU assets represent the Company’s right to use an underlying asset for the lease term and
lease liabilities represent the Company’s obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease. For
short-term leases and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The lease arrangements include options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term.
ROU assets and lease liabilities include these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be
exercised.

The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial
direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

ROU assets are depreciated from the date of commencement of the lease on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and the useful life of the underiying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments,
For leases under which the rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable, the Company uses its
incremental borrowing rate based on the information available at the date of commencement of the lease
in determining the present value of lease payments. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding
adjustment to the related ROU asset if the Company changes its assessment as to whether it will exercise
an extension or a termination option.

Adoption of Ind AS 116

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116, “Leases” {“ind AS 116”). As a result, the
Company has changed its accounting policy for accounting of leasing arrangements, which has been
detailed below.
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The Company applied the “Modified Retrospective Approach” on the date of initial application (April 1,
2019). Accordingly, comparatives for the year ended March 31, 2019 have not been retrospectively
adjusted. The Company has elected the available practical expedients which allows the Company not to
reassess under the new standard its prior conclusions about lease identification, lease classification and
initial direct costs. The Company has also elected the practical expedient to not separate lease and non-
lease components for all of its leases, non-capitalization of short-term leases (leases with a term of twelve
months or less) and low value leases (leases for which the underlying asset is of low value).

The most significant effects of this new standard on the Company relate to the recognition of new right-
of-use (“ROU") assets and lease liabilities on its financial position for various real estate operating leases.
Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the financial position and the payment
of principal portion of lease liabilities has been classified as financing cash flows.

The difference between the lease obligation disclosed as at March 31, 2019 under Ind AS 17 “Leases”
disclosed under Note 44 of the Company’s financial statements included in the Company’s annual report
for the year ended March 31, 2019, and the value of the lease liabilities as at April 1, 2019 is primarily on
account of the inclusion of extension and termination options reasonably certain to be exercised, the
practical expedient to not separate lease and non-lease components in measuring the lease liability in
accordance with Ind AS 116 and discounting the lease liahilities to the present value under Ind AS 116.

{iv) Other income and expenses
All Other income and expense are recognized in the period they occur.

{v) impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of
impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the assets,
net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and risks specific to the asset.

In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. After impairment, depreciation is
provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

{vi) Taxes

Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from, or paid to, the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted, by the reporting date in the countries where
the Company operates and generates taxable income.
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Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
{either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to
the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are only recognised for temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax
credits if it is probable that future taxable amounts will arise to utilise those temporary differences and
losses. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liahilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and they refate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

Minimum alternate tax {MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax.
The Company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that it is probable that the
Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is
allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes MAT credit as an asset in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative
Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit
and loss and shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” The Company reviews the MAT Credit Entitlement asset
at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing
evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

Goods and services tax /service tax/value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring
expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax/service tax/value added taxes paid,
except:

i When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the
asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

ii. When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.
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2.7 Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentational currency

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also functional currency of
the Company and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.

(ii} Transactions and balances

Initial recognition:

Foreign currency transactions are transiated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. '

Conversion:

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, which are outstanding as at the year-
end, are translated at the year-end at the closing exchange rate and the resultant exchange differences
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. '

Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
spot exchange rates as at the date of recognition.

2.8 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise the net amount of short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash {short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less) and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. They are held for the purposes
of meeting short-term cash commitments (rather than for investment or other purposes).

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short- term
deposits, as defined above.

2.9 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment, {if any}. The total cost of assets comprises its purchase price, freight, duties,
taxes and any other incidental expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the mannerintended by the management. Changes
in the expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as
appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item oftangible asset are added to its gross value only if it increases
the future benefits of the existing asset, beyond its previously assessed standards of performance and
cost can be measured reliably. Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed off as and when
incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated using the written down value method to write down the cost of property and
eguipment to their residual values over their estimated useful lives which is in line with the estimated
useful life as specified in Schedule Il of the Act. The estimated useful lives are as prescribed by Schedule |
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of the Act. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Property plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in other income /
expense in the statement of profit and loss in the year the asset is derecognised. The date of disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment is the date the recipient obtains control of that item in
accordance with the requirements for determining when a performance obligation is satisfied in Ind AS
115,

2.10 intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the
expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the Company.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of an intangible
asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready
for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangtble assets with
finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life, The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year-end.
Changes in the expected useful life, or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset, are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as
appropriate, which are then treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on
intangible assets with finite lives is presented as a separate line item in the statement of profit and loss.
Amortisation on assets acquired/sold during the vear is recognised on a pro-rata basis to the Statement
of Profit and Loss from / upto the date of acquisition/sale.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight~line method to write down the cost of intangible assets to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives. intangible assets comprising of software are
amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of 3 years, unless it has a shorter useful life,

Gains or losses from derecognition of intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
when the asset is derecognised.

ROU assets are depreciated from the date of commencement of the lease on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and the useful life of the underlying asset,

2.11 Investment Property
Properties, held to earn rentals and/or capital appreciation are classified as investment property and
measured and reported at cost, including transaction costs. For transition to Ind AS, the company has
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elected to adopt as deemed cost, the carrying value of investment property as per Indian GAAP less
accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment {if any) as on the transition date of April 1, 2017.

Depreciation is recognised using straight line method so as to write off the cost of the investment property
less their residual values over their useful lives specified in Schedule [l to the Act, or in case of assets where
the useful life was determined by technical evaluation, over the useful life so determined. Depreciation
method is reviewed at each financial year end to reflect the expected pattern of consumption of the future
benefits embodied in the investment property. The estimated useful life and residual values are also
reviewed at each financial year end and the effect of any change in the estimates of useful life/residual
value is accounted on prospective basis.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of property is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the same period.

2.12 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
-of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of the time value of money is material, the enterprise determines the level of provision
by discounting the expected cash flows at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current rates specific to the liability.
The expense refating to any provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any
reimbursement,

2.13 Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible cbligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely
rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The
Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

2.14 Earning Per Share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33 on Earnings per
share. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders {after deducting preference dividend and attributable taxes) by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed
converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. In computing

b



the dilutive earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that either reduces the
earnings per share or increases toss per share are included.

2.15. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities and the accompanying disclosure and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of
the reporting period. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised, and future
periods are affected. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current
events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could resuit in the outcomes
requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

In particufar, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements is included in the following notes:

(i} Defined employee benefit assets and liabilities

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that
may differ from actual developments in the future, These include the determination of the discount rate;
future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-
term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

{ii} Impairment of loans portfolio

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in
particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when
determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates
are driven by a2 number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of altowances.

It has been the Company’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience
and adjust as and when necessary.

{iii) Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method
The Company’s EIR methodology, recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return that
represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected hehavioural life of loans given

/ taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages and other
characteristics of the product life cycle (including prepayments and penalty interest and charges).

i
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This estimation, by nature, reguires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-
cycle of the instruments, as well expected changes to Company’s base rate and other fee income/expense
that are integral parts of the instrument

{iv) Lease accounting

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease including any option to
extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an
assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is
reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating
the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements
undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the importance of the
underlying asset to operations, taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the availability
of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term
reflects the current economic circumstances.

The Company has applied an incremental borrowing rate for the purpose of computing lease liabilities
based on the rate prevailing in respective geographies.

2.16 Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of products/activities of the company and the normal time between acquisition of
assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the company has determined its operating cycle
as 12 months,

f L



te-3 CA ND CA IVALEN

(i) Cash on hand 709,936 730,794
(i} Balances with banks:
= In Current Accounts 159,163,585 565,350,151
- In_Deposit accounts with eriginal maturity of 3 months or less - 670,000,000
Total 159,873,521 1,236,080,945

Note-4 BANK BA OTHER THAN CA CASH ALENT

In other Deposit accounts

- original Maturity more than 3 months (Refer note below)

36,406,915

77,996,078

Total

36,406,915

77,996,078

The Fixed deposits have been kept as lien with banks against term loan facility availed by company.

Note-5 TRADE RECEIVABLES

2020

U'nséc'uréd, Considered good

-Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the due date of payment

-Outstanding for a period less than six months

1,369,679

42,876,480_

Total

1,369,679

42,876,480

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days. The Company has assessed that, the impact
of impairment of trade receivables is immaterial and hence no impairment loss has been provided.

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other
trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a

member.
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Note-7 INVESTMENTS

Mutual. funds

1,120,899,432

Equity Shares

Total 1,120,899,432 -
{i) Investments outside India - -
it} Investments in India 1,120,895,432 -
Total 1,120,899,432 -
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Numbers/Units Numbers /Units
1. HDFC Liquid Fund 5123.172
2. ABSL Liguid Fund 219141.716
3. SEI Liquid Fund 22523.13
4. ICICI Prudential Liquid Fund - Direct Plan 1584116.027

5. ICICI Prudential Ultra Short Fund - Direct Plan

23072613.14

Note- 8 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars . . . * -AsatMarch 31,2020 | - As at March 31, 2019 .
Security Deposits 6,876,106 6,652,361
Total 6,876,106 6,652,361
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Note-9 CURRE N

{Amount in Rs ]

Advance Tax (net of provision for tax)

5.926,157

6,665.44 7

Total

5,926,157

6,665,447

-10 DEFERRED TAX A t

The major components of deferred tax assets and liabilities are :

(Amount in Rs )

a) Depreciation 3,354,722 2,707,099
b) Provisions for Loans 16,238,056 - 3,848,541 -
¢) Provision for Employee Benefits 1,996,287 - 1,207,260 -
d) Amortised Finance Cost - 2,582,109 - 10,491,644
e} Amortised Fees Income 4,482 603 - 41,035,617 -
f) Others 148,674 - 132,528 -
g) MAT Credit Entitlement 8,080,799 - 3,625,150 -
Tota} 34,301,140 2,582 109 52,556,196 | 10,491,644
Net Deferred Tax Asset 31,719,032 42,064,553
Note 11- T NT PROPERTI
_ ___(Amount in Rs.)

LT S Parkiculars - As at Mareh 31; 2020 As:atMarch:31,2019 ..
Investment PI’OpEI‘tles* 8,822,838 10,973,681
Total 8,822,838 10,973,681

- " 'Cost of Deemed cost.: A at March 31;. 2020 ‘As at March 31;:2019 ..«
Baiance at the beging of the year

10,973,681 10,973,681
Addition during the year
Disposals 2,150,843 -
Balance at the end of the year
Total 8,822,838 10,973,681

* Investment Properties are in the nature of freehold properties and fair value of the properties is Rs. 2,51,18,920

f
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Hote-12 PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Proparty, plant and equipment

LAmount in Rs.)

BLOCK.
|Computer Hardvare 25,013,673 237,450 377,385 25,773 696 15499374 6,707,045 254,515 21 848 654 39251043 10,314,358
[Eurnituce and Fixtures 8,363,930 126,841 208,059 8,201,712 2,613.907 1476712 95,104 39938511 | 4,208,302 S.751,027
[Office. Equipmonts 8,525,213 FA3915 109,961 9,199,146 3,750,065 | 2,430,152 71,984 6,008,233 | 3,100,913 4,775 196
[Vahicles 2,013,288 2,666,725 - 4,688 017 470317 | 1,073,304 - 1,544,215 | 3,135,801 1,542,376
IElectrisal Ineteliation 02,3 - - 07300 114.65] 48,564 - 163,2 139,065 167,649 |
Tetal — 5136357 ddnese | grragsl adasenial _—234e7758 | 126500 | sqewuy | Tipaveas | i4gos.03y | 3i6vacev )

[Faftwary 3,459 16§ 1331772 - 4,790,960 1,534,175 | 1,187,461 2731 1,065,334 1,935.813 |
}mamm 17,312,561 17,312,561 10,000,723 16,300,753 7,111,838
Zetal 1u122,186 10,609,203 s 22105520 L2475 | - 12252359 2181252 1222013

Other Intangible assets ;

1,2019.
| Computer Hardware 16,06 8944 614 - 25313,622 4339808 11,159,320 15.495,0734 10,414,358 12,629,104
|Fursiture pnd Fixtures 7,353,376 1,350,121 219,567 3,363,930 760,957 1,009,257 £5.312 2612907 5,751,007 6,484,419 |
|2ffice Fuvipmenty 4,963,331 3,590,47) 28,493 8,525.212 747,385 3,013 M7 10,765 3,750,065 4,775,136 4.215046
1¥ghiclas 1,077,338 213,280 1,077,339 2,012,208 390,785 H 425316 470,812 1,542,376 866,552
[Fiectric] Installation 302300 - - 302, 46,643 58,008 - 114,651 187,549 355,657
otal 208253 | 13,606,306 | 3.245.398 | 45 118353 5,293,675 | 16685424 | sor3es] 22447755 | 22670507 I __3ag7icve |

[Software 7,277,662 1,231,526 3,453,380 552,136 | W07 - 1,534,175 1525013 1675524
{Totsl 2,227,662 ] = i R 882,037 = L33Lle . 19250331 1675524 ]




Note-13 OTHER NON FINANCIAL ASSETS

{Amount in Rs.)

Prepaid Expenses 3,207,603 2,377,521
Other Assets 888,226 1,125,334
Deferred lease rentals 1,479,036 2,030,909
Total 5,574,865 5,533,764

Note-14 TRADE PAYABLES
TRADE PAYABLES

Total out

standing dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 25,122,775 21,310,564
enterprises
Accrued Employee Benefit Expense 13,000,002 20,000,003
Total 38,122,777 41,310,567

i
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Term Loans fi nks*®

Tearn Loans from MNatianal Housing Bank**

546,247,000

From Banhs (Cnardraft)+=+

6,763,742,756 |

£.763, 742,756

Total 7,743,119, 754
Bormwings o Indi L243.139,754
Tatal

*Firit parl-passu charge by way of hyp
average cost lor FY 13-20 s 5.62% p.a.

of the B

v1kan

.
# book debts with asset eover i tha range of 1.10 to 1.25 thmes and welghted

**First parl-passu charge by way of hypothecation of the company’s loan recelvables f book debts with asset cover i the ranpe of 125 t0 1,35 Umes and welghied

average cazi for FY 192015 7.89% p.a,

7" Thiz inchudes lien on the Company's Term Deposliz [ refer note &}

Tetins of repayment, nature of security & rsle of Interest in case ol Barrowings [Other than Debt Sequrltles)

Kame ol $acurity

Maturity dote

Terms of repayment

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

Utuot Bank of India- Term Loan 1

Linica Bank of kndia - Term Loan 2

Novernber 30, 2025

Avgust 30, 1025

Repayable In 28 Equal
Cusartordy Installment, starting
irom Feb 2019

500, 000,000

SO0,000,000

Repayable In 24 Equadl
Quarterty Instollment starting
trom Now 2019

10,000,000

200,000,000

Ueign Bank ol India - Term {oan 2

September 30 2028

Yregh Bank of India - Term Laan 2

Nevamber 30, 2025

Fapayable in 24 Equal
CGuaripry Instatiment siarting
from Dec 2018

S06,000,000

500,000,000

Repnyable in 24 Equat
| Gruarterly tnstallman starting
rom Fab 2020

ADO, 000,000

A0, 000,000

Liman Bark of indta - Term Losn 2

Dacarmipar 31. 2005

State Bank O4 Indin- Torsa Loan 1

Decornber 31, 2025

Repayable in 2d Equal
Quinterly Installment starling
drem ldar 2020

00, 00000

400,000,000

fiepayable In 28 Equal
Cusarierty Installment starting
From Apeil 2019

500,000,000

SO0.000,000

Stabe bk O ndia - Term Laan

Ochober 3, 2027

Repayable in 28 Equat
Dyuareerly Instafiment skarfang
[rem far 2021

1000, 000,000

YES Bark Limited - Tarm Loan 3

Ducemnber 30, 2037

yRepraable in 20 Equat
Cuariesly Installment starting
from Aprd 2018

50,000,000

540,000,000

WES Bank Limited - Term Loan 1

Apri 17, 3023

Repayable in 20 Equal

150,000,000

150,000,000

[YES Bank Limited - Term Loan 1

hprl 25, 2023

Quarterly Installment slarting
Tearmn July 3028
Repayable in 20 Equal

Quarterty installment staring

from O Judy 2018

200,000,000

VES Bank: Limited - Term Loan 2

¥ES Bank Limated « Tarme Loan 3

Jiuby 30, 7023

[Pepavable i 70 Equal
Cruatterly bnstalfmeny starting
Troum By 2018

100,000,000

Dacernber 31, W23

Rapayable i 20 Fqual
Cusartare by Istallmenk staring
drom horil 2018

134,200,000

150,000,600

YES Bank |imited « Term Loan 3

ES Bank Limnlied - Term Loon 4

VES Bank bimited - Term [gan'5

Drecember 31, 2023

Oetober 19, 3023

Dctober 19, X023

Repayable in 20 [qual
Cnarierty Installment starung
From Aywil 2018

250,000,000

250.000,000

Fepayable in 70 Equal
Quariery Installment starhing,
fram Fab 2019

250, 003000

250,000,000

FRepdyable in 20 Egu
Cruariedly Installment siarbing
frem Fob 2019

250,000,000

50,000,000

Bank of Maharashtra - Tertn Lesn

| tinelhry Bank - Tyrm Loan

Tecembar 31, 7024

Februany 27, 2026

Repayable in 24 Egual
Cuarterly Iastallment starting
Trom Mareh 2009

T50,000,000

750,000,000

Repayable in 28 Equal
Quartery Ins13llment starting
Fram hiay 1019

250,000,000

250,000,000

Dank of Baroda (£ swhile known a5 Vijays
Bank} - Term Laan

Frbruary 28, 2026

Repaablein 28 Equal
[Guarierly Instailmant starting
Trom May 2018

300 00000

300, GO0.G00

Linitgd Bank - Term Loan L

Febuuary 78, W25

Linitad Bank - Term Loan 2

Ropayabile in 28 Equal
Quareedly Installmant startng
dtpm hiay 2019

250,000,000

250,000,000

Aupust 28, 2027

UCO Bank - Term Loan 1

Punfab and Sind Bank - Tern 1oan

Fobruary 28, 2026

Ropayable in 28 Equal

Quarterty Installment starling
Eram 2020

Hepavable in 78 Equal
Quarterly Installment storting
from M; a

SO0, 000,000

SO0, 000,000

Jung 14, 2026

Repayable in 28 Eqund
Cuarhadly tnstatimant skarbing

irowm Sept J0]5

250,000,000

250,000,000

Indign Bank - Term Loan

Auguil 15, 2026

(Repaynble in 28 Equal

Quarteely Insrallment starting

Srom Nev 2019

750,000,000

FHED00,000

Matbonal Hausing Bank tRefinance’

Hatipna! Howtang Bank [Refinans:

Hatiomal Housing Bank [Rafinarce |

Ronl 1, 2026

Repayabie In 28 Equal
Quarterly Instgllmant starting
fpom Oct 2019

20,00, 00

| Apai 1, 2034

Repayable n 60 Equal
[Quarterly Insigliment Slartimg
[rm Dot 2012

30,000,000

fRepayable in 70 Equat

Cruarlerly Instatiment

3,000,000




Note-16 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

__{Amount in Rs.)

Particulars ‘at March 31,2020 | As 7201
Interest Accrued but not due on borrowlngs 343,562 244,920
Book Overdraft - 286,714,851
Others 25,538,685 -
Lease Liability 7,622,394 -
Total 33,504,641 286,959,771 |

Note-17 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES

AS at March 31; 2004

it March 31,2019

Prowsmn for Income Tax (Net of Advance tax)

166,137

5472,849

Total

166,137

5,472,849

Note-18 PROVISIONS

Prowsmn on non-fund exposure 4,184,956 3,121,624
Provision for Employee Beneff its

- Gratuity 2,026,410 1,988,930
- Compensated Absences 6,855,380 4,145,812
Total 13,066,746 9,256,366

Note-19 OTHER NON-FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

s ‘Particulars 3 A_s‘_atMarc_hBi,ggzo
Other Payables

Statutory Remittances 1,447,004 15,257,525
Advance received from customer 34,204,351 24.730.518
Total _ 35,651,357 39,988,043

1
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{Amount in Rs.}

Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting peried:

AUTHORISED
6,50,00,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each 650,000,000 650,000,000
{Previous Year 6,50,00,000 Equity Shares of T 10 each)

L 650000000l 650.000.000
1SSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID LP
6,07,14,280 Equity Shares of £ 10 each 607,142,800 607,142,800
{Previous Year 6,07,14,280 Equity Shares of T 10 each)

607.142.8000 607,142 800)

ount
Equity shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year 60,714,280 607,142,800 36,904,760 369,047,600
1ssued during the year - Rights issue B 23,809,520 238,095,200
Equity shares putstanding as at the end of the year 60,714,280 607,142,800 60,714,280 607,142,800

Details of shareholders holding more than 5 percent shares in the Company are given below:

TEYERS

k31,2019

Capri Global Capital Limited { Holding Company )

6,07,14,280

10C.00

6,07,14,260

100.00

Terms/Rights attached to equity shares:

1. The Company has only one class of equity share having a face value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

2. During the last year the Company had issued 23,809,520 equity shares having face value of Rs. 10/- each at Rs. 42/- per share to its Holding Company.

3. During the year ended 31 March 2020, the amount of dividend recognized as distributions to equity sharehoiders was Rs.NIL (31 March 2019 Rs.NIL}

4. In the event of figuidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

7
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:]0} Resen ger cLion <9C of ¥

Balance as per the last Financial Statements
Closing balance

5 ities P .
Balance as per the last financial statements
Additions/(Deletions) during the year
Closing balance

Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Opening Balance

Add: Amount transferred from surplus balance in the Statement of Profit and Loss

42,100,000 28,100,000
49,000,000 14,000,000
91,100,000 42,100,000
1,142,856,960 380,952,321

. 761,904,640
1,142,856,960 1,142,856,961

279,991,258

224,429,308

Profit / (Loss) for the year: 243,326,183 69,823,951
Less: Transfer to Statutory Reserve (49,000,000} (14,000,000)
A " justmenss on -
Other Comprehensive Income (97,928) (262,001)
474,219,513 279,991,258
TOTAL 1,708,176,473 1,464,948,219

Securities Premium

Securities premium is credited when shares are issued at premium. It can be used to issue bonus shares, to provide for premium on redemption of shares or

debentures, write-off equity related expenses like underwriting costs, etc.

Statutory Reserve pursuant £o Section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987

Every housing finance institution which is 2 company shall ¢create a reserve fund and transfer therein a sum not less than twenty per cent of its profit every year as
disciosed in the profit and loss account and before any dividend is dedared. Explanation.—A housing finance institution creating and maintaining any special reserve in
terms of clause (vii) of sub-section (1) of section 36 of the Income-tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) may take into account any sum transferred by it for the year to such
spedial reserve for the purposes of this sub-section. For the previous comparative periods, company has maintained transfer to statutory reserve on profit calculated

under erstwhile GAAP,

{
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Note-22 TNTEREST INCOME

Interest 6h Loahs

£ost
1,260,181,445

ost .
671,702,354

Interest on deposits 4,658,485 7,104,045
Total 1,264,839,930 678,806,399

- IN

Appliéatmn fes

21,442,772

37,589,721

Total

21,442,772

37,589,721

N ~24 NET N F L E

{A} Net gain on financjal instruments ét fair value through profit or loss

i) On trading portfolic

- Investments 28,646,705 21,667,424
(ii} On financial instruments designated at fair value through - B
(B) Others - -
{C) Total Net gain on fair value changes 28,646,705 21,667,424
(D} Fair Value change:
-Realised 18,424,251 21,667,424
-Unrealised 10,222,454 -
Total Net gain on fair value changes 28,646,705 21,667,424

TH E IN

Advertisement Income

27,850,000 | 108,413,
Leqal Charges 4,544,322.00 11,141,633
Other charaes 31,342,589 31,113,099
Total 63,736,909 150,667,732
-2 IN

Bad debts recovered

222088

Others* 16,029,097 4,429
Total 16,029,097 226,717

*Service fees of Rs. 1,04,27, 906/~ (31st March 2019 Rs. Nil) received from Capri Global Capital Limited

T
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| loss

{A) Net loss on financial instruments at fair vaiue mrough proﬁt or

{i) On trading portfolio

- Investments

{fi) On financial instruments designated at fair value through

{B) Others

{C) Total Met loss on fair value changes

{D} Fair Value change :
-Realised
-Unrealised

Total Net loss on fair value changes

Note-30 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Salaries and Bonus 191,620,207 169,516,404
Contribution to Provident Fund ang Other Funds B,749,948 4,236,723
Staff Training and Welfare Expenses 7,033,764 7,859,757
Share Based Payments to employees 4,843,584 {548,535)
Total 212,247,503 200,964,349
Note-31 OTHER EXPENSES

—

Auditors' Remunaration 1,657,534 400,000
Bad Debts Written OFF 9,131,072 9,934
Banking Charges 5,676,208 385,295
Business Development Expenses 65,697 1,384,385
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expenses 1,377,500 1,072,000
Directors' Fees and Commission 1,156,300 1,332,525
Electricity Charges 6,502,693 5,087,333
Insurance Charges 3,456,080 1,848,291
Legal Expenses 33,106,076 75,768,702
Manpower Outsourcing Expenses 105,254 1,760,617
Membership and Subscription Expenses 560,826 815,746
Postage, Telephone and Fax 9,344,521 13,576,011
Prirting and Statignery 5,048,728 7,186,474
Lease Rent { refer note no. 2 (6)(lii} and note no.45 ) 15,157,570 24,238,927
Repairs and Maintenance - Buildings 1,729,174 -
Repairs and Maintenance - Other than Buildings 340,021 896,505
Loss On Sale OF Fixed Assets 148,819 -
Software Expenses 6,357,295 3,302,974
Filing and Dther Fees 23,200 243,221
Service Fee Expenses* 13,080,000 15,920,142
Travelling and Conveyance 10,528,587 13,759,487
General Expenses 9,321,281 8,956,760
Total 134,290,836 180,945,329

* paid to Capri Glokal Capital Limited

1, Auditors’ Remuneration

19

2} For Audit 300,000 300,000.00
b} Far Tax Audit 100,000 100,000.00
¢) For Limited Review 150,000 -
d} For other servicas {Certification Fees) 1,076,317 -
€} For reimbur t of exp 31,218 -
Total 1,657,535 400,000

2. Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses

articulars

Crb;ss .Arﬁou.nt Réquwed to be .spént during the year

1,071,672

1,377,500
Amount spent during the year on Corporate Social Responsibiity n line
with Schedule V1! of the Companies Act 2013 1,377,500 1,072,000

T



Note 32 -OT COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Amount in Rs,)

March 31,2020

Other com'prehenswe income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement loss (gain) on defined benefit plan (138,160) {362,983)
Income tax relating to these items 40,232 100,982
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax {97,928) (262,001)

1 -
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Note 34 The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic acrass the globe and in India has contributed to a significant decline and volatility in the
global and indian financial markets and slowdown In the economic activities. Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has issued guidelines
relating to COVID-19 Regulatory Package dated March 27, 2020 and April 17, 2020 and in acgordance therewith, the Cornpany
has proposed a moratorium of three months on the payment of alf principal instalments and/ or interest, as applicable, falling
due between March 1, 2020 and May 31, 2020 to all eligible borrowers classified as standard, even if overdue as on February 29,
2020, excluding the collections already rmade in the month of March 2020, For all such accounts where the moratorium is
granted, the asset classification will remain at a standstill during the moratorium period fi.e. the number of days past due shall
exclude the moratorium period for the purposes of asset classification as per the Cornpany’s policy).

Further, the Company has, based on current available information and based on the policy approved by the board, determined
the provision for impairment of financial assets. Given the uncertalnty over the potential macro-gconomic impact, the
Company's management has considered internal and external information including credit reports and economic forecasts upto
the date of approval of these financial Statement. Accordingly, the Company has made provision for expected credit loss on
financial assets as at March 31, 2020. As part of the management overtays, as per the approved ECL policy, the management has
increased the underlying PD and LGD as computed by ECL Model by 15%-20% depending on the nature of the
portfolio/borrower, the manegement's estimate of the future stress and risk and available market informaticn. Based on the
current indicators of future economic conditions, the Company considers this provision to be adequate and expects to recover
the carrying amount of thase financlal assets.

The extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic will impact the Company’s Financial 5tatement will depend on future
developments, which are highly uncertain, including, among other things, any new information concerning the severity of the
COVID-19 pandemic and any action to contaln its spread or mitigate its impact whether government-mandated or elected by the
Company. Glven the uncertainty over the potential macro-economic condition, the impact of the global health pandemic may be
different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial Statement and the Company will continue to closely
monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.
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Note 36- Deferred Tax

The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the Income tax expense:

{Amount in Rs.)

Deferred Tax
Particulars Deferred Tax Assets Liabilities Income Statement 0CI
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2020 2019-20 2019-20
Provisions 1,996,287 - 789,026 -
Depreciation 3,354,722 - 647,623 -
Financial Instruments at FVTPL - - - -
Impairment allowance for financial assets 16,238,056 - 12,389,515 -
Unamortised Borrowing Cost - 2,582,109 7,908,535 -
Unamortised Fees and Commission 4,482,603 - -36,553,014 -
Other Temporary Differences 148,674 - 117,128 -
Other Comprehensive Income - - ~100,982 -
Adjusted against current tax - - 24,952,256 -
MAT Credit Entitlement 8,080,799 - - -
Total 34,301,140 2,582,109 10,151,087 -
{Amount in Rs.)
Deferred Tax Deferred Tax
Particulars Assets Liabilities Income Statement 0CI
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2019 2018-19 2018-19
Provisions 1,207,260 - 781,640 -
Depreciation 2,707,099 - 2,720,871 -
Financial Instruments at FVTPL - - (14,736) -
Impairment, allowance for financial assets 3,848,541 - 2,605,741 -
Unamartised Borrowing Cost - 10,491,644 (6,962,240) -
Unamortised Fees and Commissian 41,035,617 - 26,755,256 -
Other Temporary Differences 31.546 - 31,546 -
Other Comprehensive Income 100,982 - - 100,982
Carry Forward Losses - - (2,909,109) -
MAT Credit Entitlement 3,625,150 - - -
Total 52,556,196 10,491,644 23,008,969 100,982
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(Amount in Rs)

Particulars As at April 1, 2019 Cash Flow As at March 31, 2020
Borrowings other than debt securities 6,763,742,756 979,376,998 7,743,119,754
Total liabilities from financing activities 6,763,742,756 979,376,998 7,743,119,754
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Note 39- Fair value measurements

391 Financialk
C :
- Mutual funds 1,120,859,432 -
Trade receivables . 1,369,679 42,876,480
Loang - 8,776,124,255 7,764,793,851
{Cash and cash equivalents - 158,873,521 1,236,080,945
|Bank Balances other than ahaove 3 36,405,915 77,996,078
(Gthar financial Assets ” 6,876,106, 6,652,361
Total financial assets 1,130,609,432 8,980,450,476 9,118,399,715
Financial Habiliies
Borrowings (other than debt seourities} - 7.743,119,7%% 6,763, 742,756
Trade payables . 38,122,777 41,310,557
Other financlal liability - 33,504,641 286,953,771
Total financial liabllities - 7,814,747,172 7,092,013,094

39,2  Fair value hierarchy i

This saction explaing the judgemants and astimatas made in detarmining the far vahees of the financlal instruments that are (a) recogrsed and measured at fair value and (b) measured at
armartised cost and for which falr values are discloted in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the refiability of the Inputs usad in determining fair value, the Company
has clagsifiad its Mnancial instruments inko the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An axptanation of each level fallows undermeath the table,

Finaticlal gty And labiliies imassured AL e - Fulk-Vatue -
i irting s ;

Mutual lunds 7 1,130,55,432 1.120,809.432 : - 1,120,899 4321
! L120.809.432 | 1,120.699.432 - .| 1,120.999,432 |

gl 3 159,873,521 15287152 - - 159,873,521
|Bank Balances other than above E) 36,406,915 26906 315 - - 36:406.915)
T i 5 1,369 679 - - 1369679 1,366 575)
[Lpans 5 B.775.964. 344 - - B.779,064.344 £,775.964 334|
|koans to emplovees 159911 - - 153,911 199911
|Qther financipl assets 8 5,876,105 5,876 106} 5,876,106
Total financial assats B,980,650.476 106,290,435 - 6,784.370.040 8.980,650.475
|Financlal Liabilities
[Trade Pavale iq 38,137 777 - 38,122,777 38122777
| Boregwinas fother than debt securifies 15 7,743,119,754 - - 7,743,115.754 Z7A3,119.754
financial llabilr 16 33.504 641 . - 23,504,641 33 m
[¥otal fingacial liabilities 2814747173 - - Z.814,747,172 7.814.747 177

a5h an 3 1.236,080,595 1.235,080.945 - - 1336.080,945 |
Bank Balances other than abe 4 77,995,578 77,596,078 - . 77,996,778 |
Track Recalvables 5 22,876 480 - - 2676480 | 42,8754
6 7,763,900 394 - - 2.763,900.334 7.763.400.304 }
0aNs B0 emmloyees 1,393,457 - = 1393457 1 457
Cther financial assst: ] 5.693 36] §.602,361 6,652,361
gtal fnancial g 9.138.399.715 1,314.077.023 -] 7,814,322 693 9,126,399 735]
Finangis "
Trage payabls 14 41310557 - a1 3105671
Bormowings (othar than debit sevprities) i3 5,763, 743,755 - - 5,763, 742,756
Other finanda! liabilibes 16 286,959,771 - - 266,959,771
{Total Anancial liabilities 7.092,013,094 - - 7,092,0130594 7,092,013,094/

Leval 1: Level L hierarchy includes financial ingtruments measured using quoted pricas. This includes listed equity instruments, tradad bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price. The Falr value of
all equity instruments (including bonds) which are raded In the stock axchanges is valued using the £iasing price as at the reportina oeriod. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV,

Level 2: The fair vale of financial instruments that are not traded in an active markst (For sxarnple, traded bonds, over-the- counter derivatives) 15 dstermined using valuation techniques which
masmise the yse of obsarvable markat data and rety as litthe as possible aa entity-specific estmatas, IF all significant inputs required o Fair value an nstrumant are observable, the instrument, is

Level 31 [f one or more of the significant inputs is not based on absarvable market dats, the instrument is Incluced w bevel 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingant consideration
and indemnification asset included in level 3.

The carmying 2mounts of trade receivables, trade payables, capital craditors and cash and cash equivalents are considerad o be the same a5 thair fair values, dug bo theic shor-term natune,
The company gives lnan at floaling rate with terms including the fixed intarest rate for initial period. The Fair value of these loans approximates the Carrying amount,

For financial assets and labllities that are measurad at fair value, the carmying amounts are equal to the fair valuss,

V
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Note- 42 Employee Stock Qotion Plan

The Capri Global Capital Ltd (Holding Company) has grantad 205,500 ESOPs to the employees of the Company. The ESOPs will be vested as per below mentioned
schadule. A charge of Rs. 48,43,584 /- i5 recoginised in the statement of Profit & Loss during the year ended March 31, 2020 (Year ended March 31, 2019 Rs.

21,31,048/-).

Financial Year in which options will vest ESOPs equivalent t¢ number of equity shares of face value of Rs 10/~ each
2020-21 15,250
2021-22 54,750
2022-23 63,150
2023-24 62,150
2024-25 9,200
- n {IND- 1}

Operating Segment

The Company operates mainly in the business segment of fund based financing activity. All other activities revolve arpund the main business. Further, all activities are
carried out within India. As such, there are no separate reportable segments as per the provisions of IND AS 108 on *Operating Segments’.

Note 44- Related party disclosures

Compensation of key management personnel of the Company

Key management personnel are those individuals who have the authority and responsibility for planning and exercising power to directly or indirectly control the
activities of the Company and its employeas. The Company includes the members of tha Board of Directors which include indapendent directors (and its sub-
committees) and Executive Committes to be key management personnel for the purposes of Ind AS 24 Related Party Disclosures,

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Short-term employee banefits 1,200,000 890,323
Total 1,200,000 890,323

Transactions with key management personnel of the Company

The following table provides the total amount of transactions, which have been entered into with key management personnel for the relevant financial year:

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Diractor Sitting Feas 1,070,000 1,222,500
Total 1,070,000 1,222,500
March 31, 2020
Key management personnel of the Company:
Mr. Rajesh Sharma Managing Director
Mrs. Bhagyam Ramani Independent Director
Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka Independent Director
Mr, T.R. Bajalia Independent Director

Key management personnel of the Company:
Mr, Kaushik Chatterjee (up to July 30,2018}

Mr. Rajesh Sharma (w.e.f July 04, 2018)

Mrs. Bhagyam Ramani

Mr. Beni Prasad Rauka

Mr. T.R. Bajalia

Trust Under Common Control
Money Matters Securities Private Limited Employee Group Gratuity Assursnce Scheme

Corporate Social Responsibility:
Capri Foundation

h

March 31, 2019

Director
Managing Directar
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director




Transactions with related party of the Company

Name of refated parties and related party relationship;
a) Related parties where control exists:
Capri Global Capital Limited {Holding Company)

For the year ended For the year ended
Statement Of Profit & Loss Item: March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Income
Service fees 10,427,906 -
Expenses
Sarvice fees 12,000,000 18,275,360

Balance Sheet Itemn {Closing Salance);

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

Amount Payable B,547,097 2,623,513
Amount Receivabla 1,622,998 -
b} Faliow subsidiary companies
Capr| Global Resources Private Limited
Caprt Global Asset Reconstruction Private Limited (Tili December 30, 2019)
Capr! Global Capital {Mauritius) Limited {Till December 15, 2019)
¢} Enterprises over which Management andfor their relatives have control:
Capri Global Heldings Private Limited
Parshwanath Buildcon Private Limited
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rent 560,127 457 BOO
Total 560,127 457,800
Balance Sheet Item (Closing Balance): As at March 31, 2020 | As at March 31, 2019
Amount Payable 28,972 -
Total 28,972 -
d} Post-employment Benefit Plan
Morney Matters Securities Private Limited Employee Group Gratuity Assurance Scheme
For the year ended For the year ended
Statement Of Profit & Loss Ttem: March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Employee Benefits 2,012,000 246,654
Total 2,012,000 246,654

Balance Sheet Item (Closing Balance):

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

Amount Payable - 1,988,930
Total - 1,988,930
e) Corporate Social Responsibility
Capri Foundation

For the year ended For the year ended
Statement Of Profit & Loss Item: March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 1,302,500 1,071,672
Total 1,302,500 1,071,572

7
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Note- 45 Leases

The changes in the carrying value of ROU assets for the year ended March 31, 2020 are as follows:

Gross carrying vaiue

Balance as at April 1, 2019

17,312,561

On adoption of IND A5 116

Additions

Terminations/modifications

Translation adjustments

Balance as at March 31, 2020

17,312,561

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at April 1, 2019

Depreciation

10,200,723

Terminations/modifications

Translation adjustments

Balance as at March 31, 2020

10,200,723

Net carrying vaiue as at March 31, 2020

7,111 838

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities as at April 1, 2019 is 9.44%.

The company’s operating {ease commitment and lease liability as at March 31, 2019 are recognised as per Ind AS 116 in the Balance Sheet as at April

1, 2019 as foliows:

Total operating lease commitments disclosed at March 31, 2019 21,697,530
Recognition exemption
Leases with remaining life of less than 12 months 2,528,826
Adjustments required under Ind AS 116
Practical expedient for maintenance charges -
Lease commencements after transition date -
Others -
Leased assets (other than premises) recognized as reguired by the new standard
| Gross lease liability before discounting 19,168,704
Effect of discounting using incremental borrowing rate 1,856,143
Discounted lease liability 17,312,561
Lease liability with respect to exercising reasanably certain extension options
Total lease liabilities recognized under Ind AS 116 at April 1, 2019 17,312,561
The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2020.
Lease liahilities
Balance as at April 1, 2019 17,312,561
Additions -
Terminations/modifications -
Finance expense 1,224,486
Payment of lease liabilities 10,914,653
Translation adjustments -
Balance as at March 31, 2020 7,622,394

Rental expense charged for short-term & low value leases was Rs 1,51,57,970/-, for the year ended March 31, 2020.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2020, on an undiscountad basis:

Tenure 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Less than 1 year 5,492,095 13,443,476
1-3 years 2,761,959 7,501,840
3-5 years 752,214
More than 5 years
Total 8.254,054  21,697.530




Note 46-In accordance with IND AS - 33 Earnings per Share, the compulation of eamings per share is set out below:

(Amount in BS.}

Particulars Fo"r'atl::hYse:rZEon;:d For the Y;:rzE';;dged March
Met Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss {A) Rs. 243,326,183 69,823,951
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating Basic EPS (B} Nos, 60,714,280 37,100,455
;\;esighted average number of equity shares for calcutating Diluted (¢3 Nos. 0,714,280 37,100,455
;l:?:h?r;mgs per equity share {in Pupees) (Face value of Rs. 10/- (AY(8) Rs. 401 1.88

Ezrtse:;za)mings per equity share (in Pupees) (Face value of Rs. 10/- @) Rs. 401 1.88

Particulars Fo;r:herZEun;ﬂ For the Y;:r:onldgad March
Weighted average number of equity shares for cakulating EPS Nos. 60,714,260 37,100,455
Add : Equity shares for no consideration anising on grant of stock options under ESOP Nos. - -

[Weighted average number of equity shares in calculaton of diluted EPS Mos. 60,714,280 37,100,455

Mote 47- The Company belleves that no impairment of assets arises durlng the year as required under IND AS 36 "[mpairment of Assets™

Note 48- CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Income tax matters under dispute March 31, 2020 Rs, 10,08,298 {March 31, 2019 Rs5.2,12,329 }

Note 49- Capital and Other Commitments

a) Estimated amount of contracks remaining o be exécuted on capital account and not providad for March 31, 2020 Rs. 10,50,000 /- (March 31, 2019 Rs. Nil)

b) Other Commitments

Pendina disbursements of sanctioned loans March 31. 2020 Rs. 133,94.15.406 /- { March 31, 2019 Rs, 163.25.64.730}

Note 50- Based on the intimation received by the Comparty, none of the suppliers have confirmed to be ragistered under “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
(MSMED") Act, 2006", Accordingly, ne disclosures relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end together with interest paid fpayable are required to be fumished.

Particulars

a) Amount cutstanding but not due as at year end

b) Amount due but unpaic as at the year and

) Amounts paid after appointad date during r

d) amount of interast acerued and unpaid as at year end

[Ftal

&} The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succaeding yaar

Il
|

Note S3- In the oplnion of the Management, the Current Assets, Loans & Advances are realizable In the ordinary course of business at I2ast equal to the amount at which they are
stated in the Balance Sheet. The provision for all known liabilities is adeguate and not in excess of the amaunt reasonably necessary.

Kote 52- The company has reported frauds aggregating Rs. 37,66,523f- (March 31, 2019: NH) based on management reporting to risk committee and to the RBI through prescribed

rewms,

L




53 Disclosures

CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended on 31st March, 2020

have been given in terms of

notification

no.

NHB.HFC.CG-

DIR.1/MD8CEO/2016 dated February 9, 2017 issued by the National Housing Bank. The
below mentioned notes have been prepared taking into consideration the notification No.
NHB (ND)/DRS/Policy Circular No.89/2017-18 dated 14th June 2018.

53.1 Capital To Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR):

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
(i) CRAR (%) 43.45 50.83
(i) CRAR - Tier [ Capital (%) 42.54 50.35
(iii}y CRAR - Tier II Capital (%) 0.91 0.48

(iv) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier- 1I Capital

(v} Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instrumeants

53.2 Reserve Fund u/s 29C of NHB Act, 1987

[Amount in Rs.]

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Balance at the beginning of the year

a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank
Act, 1987

42,100,000

28,100,000

b) Amount of special reserve u/fs 36{1)(viii} of Income Tax
Act, 1961 taken into account for the purposes of Statutory
Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

¢} Total

42,100,000

28,100,000

Addition / Appropriation / Withdrawal during the year

Add:
3a) Amount transferred u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

64,92,900

b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36{1}(viii) of Income Tax
Act, 1961 taken into acgount for the purposes of Statutory
Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

49,000,000

7,507,100

Less:

a) Amount appropriated from the Statutory reserve u/s 29C
of the NHB Act, 1987

b) Amount withdrawn from the Special Reserve u/s
36(1}(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account
which has been taken into account for the purpose of
provision u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

Balance at the end of the year

a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank
Act, 1987

3,45,92,900

3,45,92,900

b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax
Act, 1961 taken into account for the purposes of Statutory
Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

5,65,07,100

7,507,100

911,00,000

421,00,000

ic) Total
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CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended on 31st March, 2020

23.3 Investments

[Amount in Rs.]

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

(1)

Value of Investments

(i) |Gross Value of Investments

(a) |InIndia 11,29,722,270 10,973,681
(b} [Outside India Nil il

(ii) |Provisions for Depreciaticn
{(a) (In India Nil Nit
(b) |Cutside India Nil Nil

¢y [Net Value of Investments
{a) |InIndia 11,29,722,270 10,973,681
(b) |Outside India il Nil
{2) |Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on

investments.

(i) |Opening balance Nil Nil

(it} |Add: Provisions made during the year Nil Nil

(iii} |Less: Write-off/ write-back of excess provisions Nil Nil
during the year

{iv) [Closing balance Nil Nil

53.4 Derivatives

The company has not entered into any derivatives transactions.

53.5 Disclosures relating to Securitisation

Details of Financial Assets s0ld to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset

Reconstruction
gr. | Particulars Current Year Previous Year
No
(i) | No. of accounts 61
(ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) 6,61,63,210

of accounts sold to SC / RC

value

(iii) Aggregate consideration * 7,50,00,000
(iv) Additional consideration realized in Nit

respect of accounts transferred in

earlier years
(v) Aggregate gain / loss over net book | gg,36,790

* The Company has received entire consideration in Cash.

i
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CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended on 31st March, 2020

53.6 Assets Liability Management (Maturity pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities)

Current Year [Amount in

Particulars

upto
30/31

Days (1
month)

Over 1
month &
upte 2
months

I‘ Over 2
months
B upto
3

Qver 3
months
& upto
6 months

Qver 6
month &
upto 1
year

Qver 1 year
3

&
years

upto

Over 3
¥ears
&upto 5
Years

Over 5
years
&upto?
Years

Qver 7
years & up
to 10
Years

Cver
16
Years

Total

Liabflities

Deposits

Borrowings

from Bank

59108143

146115715

77678571

314502430

718362002

3135577028

2509192855

750023000

23980000

8580000

7743119754

Market

Borrowing

Foraign
Currency
Liabilitias

Advances

8759911

8700000

8700000

27500000

57500000

294000000

1843000000

976500000

885000000

4736241849

8845901760

Investments

150000000

200000000

100000000

250000000

412000000

8899432

1120899432

Foreign
Currancy

Assets

Previous Year [Amount in Rs.]

Particulars

Upto
30/31

Days (1
month)

Cver 1
month &
upto 2
months

Over 2
months
& upta
3

T

Over 3
months
& upto
6 months

Cver 6
month &
upto 1
year

Ovear 1 year|
& upta 3
years

Over 3
years
&upto 5
Years

Over 5 years
Bupto?
Years

Over 7
years & up
to 10
Years

Owver
10
Years

Total

Liabilities

Deposits

Borrowings

from Bank

57.900.000

94,300,000

49,150.000

192.350.000

530,200,000

2.292.700.00

2.155.000.0

Market

Borrowing

1.405,350.000

6.28.21.752

6,799,771.752

Foreign
Currency
Liabilities

Assets

Advances

67,529,365

15,021,255

9,842,488

28,452,200

79,905,675

277,847,413

354,516,993

384,780,667

1,018,203,64

.

5,690,383,138

7,926,482,843

Investments

10,973,681

10,973,681

Forgign
Currency

Assets

MNote:- Information on the maturity pattern is based on the reasonable assumptions made by the
management before considering impact of RBI Circular Dated 27 March, 2020.

f
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CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended on 31st March, 2020

53.7 Exposure

Exposure to Real Estate Sector

[Amount in Rs.]

Category

Current Year

Previous Year

a) |Direct Exposure

(i) |Residential Mortgages -

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential
property that is or will be occupied by the borrower or
that is rented; {(Individual housing loans up to 15 lakhs
may be shown separately)

Housing Bank {NHB) and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs)

Loans <= 15 Lakhs 6,172,865,067 | 5,191,512,809

Loans > 15 Lakbs 2,939,723,004 | 2,674,691,100
(i) {Commercial Real Estate -

Lending secured by wmortgages on commercial real

estates (office buildings, retail space, multi- purpose

commercial premises, multi-family residential buildings,

multi-tenanted c¢ommercial premises, industrial or _ _

warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development Nil Nil

and construction, etc.). Exposure would also include

non-fund based {NFB) limits.
(iii) {Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and

other securitised exposures -

a) Residential Nil Nil

b} Commercial Real Estate Nil Nil
Indirect Exposure
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Nil il

Exposure to Capital Market

The Company do not have any exposure to Capital Market. Hence the related disclosures are not

applicable.

53.8 Details of financing of parent company products

These details are not applicable to company as the company is not financing any parent company

products.

53.9 Details of Single Borrower Limit {(SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL)exceeded by the

HFC

These details are not applicable to company as the company has not exceeded the SGL / GBL limit.

53.10 Unsecured Advances
The exposure to unsecured advances is Rs. Nit {Previous year Rs. Nil)

7
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CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended on 31st March, 2020

53.11 Miscellaneous

a)
disclosures are not applicable.

b)

c)

prescribed norms in 13 cases.

d) Related party Transactions

No registration obtained from other financial sector regulators.

The Company does not have any exposure to Capital Market. Hence the related

NHB has imposed penalty of Rs. 65,000/- plus applicable taxes due to LTV exceeded

Details of all material transactions with related parties are disclosed in Note no. 44,

e} Rating assigned by Credit Rating Agencies and migration of rating during the year
Sr. No. Instrument Rating Agency Date of Amount in Rs
assigned Rating

1 Long Term CARE A- Stable CARE 01-0ct-19 11,000,000,000
Bank Ratings
Facilities

2 Long Term A+ 03-Dec-19
Bank Acuité 12,000,000,000
Facilities Ratings &

Research

f) Revenue Recognition

There have been no instances in which revenue recognition has been postponed pending

resolution of significant Uncertainties.

53.12 Additional Disclosures

53.12.1 Provisions and Contingencies

[Amount in Rs.]

Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies’ shown under the
head Expenditure in Statement of Profit and Loss

Current Year

Previous Year

Provisions for depreciation on Investment Nil Nil
Provision made towards Income tax 42,345,021 45,749,812
Provision towards NPA 13,945,927 5,787,917
Provision for Standard Assets (with details like teaser loan, CRE, 30,513,145 13,850,174
CRE-EH etc.)

Other Provision and Contingencies includes:

Provision for depreciation on fixed assets 23,114,881 17,637,511
Provision for gratuity 21,75,640 21,81,854
Provision for leave encashment 33,76,439 30,80,741

Housing

Non-Housing

Break up of Loan & Advances and

Current Year ;Previous Year Current Year; Previous

Provisions thereon Year
Standard Assets
a) Total Qutstanding Amount 843,58,66,101 :1737,49,94,045' 56,78,94,601 | 445,413,08

!
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CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended on 31st March, 2020

b} Provisions made 4,68,44,332 | 1,89,91,668 38,10,352 11,49,871
Sub-Standard Assets
i a) Total Qutstanding Amount 9,29,27,464 | 3,97,74,232 51,59,764 | 20,72,992 |
{  b) Provisions made 1,39,39,120 59,66,135 7,73,965 3,10,949
Doubtful Assets - Category-I i
a) Total Outstanding Amount 59,34,820 Nil 10,38,798 Nii
b} Provisions made 14,83,705 Nil 2,59,700 MNil
Doubtful Assets - Category-I1
a} Total Qutstanding Amount Nil Nil il MNil
b) Provisions made Nil Nil Nl Nil
Doubtful Assets - Category-IIL
a) Total Quistanding Amount Nil Nil Nil Nil
b) Provisions made Nii il Nil Nil
Loss Assets
a) Total Outstanding Amount 37,66,523 Nil Nil Nil
b} Provisions made 37,66,523 Nil Nil Nil
TOTAL
a) Total Qutstanding Amount 853,84,94,508 |741,47,68,277| 57,40,93,163 |45,14,86,07
b) Provisions made 6,60,33,680 2,49,57,803 48,44,016 |14,60,819

53.12.2 Draw Down from Reserves

The Company has not made any draw down from reserves during the previous year.

53.12.3 Concentration of Public Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs

Concentration of Public Deposits

The disclosure of the concentration of deposits taken is not applicable as the company carries
on the business of a housing finance institution without accepting public deposits.

Concentration of Loan and Advances

{Amount in Rs.]

Current Year

Previous Year

Total Loans and Advances to twenty largest borrowers

90,984,622

95,155,270

Percentage of Loans and Advances to twenty largest
borrowers to Total Advances of the Company

1.01%

1.21%

Concentration of Exposures (Including Off-Balance Sheet Exposure)

[Amount in Rs.]

Current Year

Previous Year

Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers/customers

94,985,616

97,502,061

h
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CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended on 31st March, 2020

customers

Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers /
customers to Total Exposure of the HFC on borrowers /

0.91%

1.02%

Concentration of NPAs

Amount in Rs.]

Current Year Previous
Year
Total Exposure to top ten NPA accounts {Gross) 2,67,34,792 2,27,77,135

Sector-wise NPAs

Sl. No|Sector Percentage of NPAs to Total
Advances in that sector

A. Housing Loans:

1. |Individuals 1.21%

2. [Builders/Project Loans Nil

3. Corporates Nil

4. iOthers Nil
B. Non-Mousing Loans:

1. |Individuals 1.09%

2. |Builders/Project Loans Nit

3. |Corporates Nil

4, |Others Nil

Movement of NPAs

[Amount in Rs.]

Current Year Previous
Particulars Year
{i} {Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 0.98% 0.45%
(ii) Movement of NPAs (Gross)
(a) [Opening balance 4,18,47,224 3,261,111
{b) Additions during the year 9,76,31,360 | 3,85,86,113
{c) Reductions during the year 3,06,51,215 il
(d) Closing balance 10,88,27,369 |4,18,47,224
(iii) jMovament of Net NPAs
{a) |Opening balance 3,55,70,1490 2,771,944
{b) |Additions during the year 7,90,87,750 3,27,98,196
(¢) |Reductions during the year 2,60,53,533 il
{d} [Closing balance 8,86,04,357 3,55,70,140

h
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CAPRI GLOBAL HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year ended on 31st March, 2020

(iv) |Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)
(a) |Opening balance 62,77,084 489,167
(b} |Provisions made during the year 185,43,610 57,87,917
(c) |write-off / write-back  of excess provisions 45,97,682 Nil
(d) |Closing balance 2,02,23,012 62,77,084
53.12.4 Overseas Assets

The company does not have any overseas assets.

53.12.5 Off-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored
The company has not sponsored any SPVs. Accordingly, the disclosure is not applicable.

53.12.6 Disclosure of Complaints

Customer Complaints

Particulars Current Year |Previous Year
(a) {No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year Nil Nil
(b) |MNo. of complaints received during the year 40 27
(¢) |No. of complaints redressed during the year 38 27
{d) INo. of complaints spending at the end of the year 2 Nil

1 L
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Nate 54:
a) Figuras are rounded off to nearest rupee.
b) Previpus year's figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary ko confirm to current year's presentation.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

G—ﬁ-d/" — Qs\.w"\ﬁ uw | C » 4/(/

(Rajesh Sharma) {Bhagyam Ramani} ( R Bajalia)
Managing Director Independent Director Independent Director
DIN 00020037 DIN 00107097 DIN 00295213 DIN 02251892
-

hsusb

{Ashish aj) {Abhishe noi)
Chief Financiyl Officer Company >ecretary
FCS ~ 9530

Place:

Date: l.\o,\,b q} W .
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